Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form
C)

TM] Relax, Inc.
20 Roosevelt Rd
Medford, MA 02155
http://tmjrelax.com

Up to $1,069,998.96 in Common Stock at $1.46
Minimum Target Amount: $9,999.54

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination
that these securities are exempt from registration.



Company:

Company: TM] Relax, Inc.

Address: 20 Roosevelt Rd, Medford, MA 02155
State of Incorporation: DE

Date Incorporated: October 06, 2021

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $9,999.54 | 6,849 shares of Common Stock
Offering Maximum: $1,069,998.96 | 732,876 shares of Common Stock
Type of Security Offered: Common Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: $1.46

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $499.32

*Maximum Number of Shares Offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See
Bonus info below.

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (the “CEO™), or his or her successor, as the Subscriber’s true and lawful
proxy and attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to,
consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities,
(ii) give and receive notices and communications, (iii) execute any instrument or
document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the exercise of its
authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in
the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and
power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are coupled with an interest.
Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the
Subscriber is an individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the
Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is an entity, will survive the merger or
reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding the Securities. However,
the Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
1935 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a
registration statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the
Common Stock

Early Bird

Invest in the first 72 hours, get 25% bonus shares
Invest in the first week, get 20% bonus shares

Invest in the first month, get 15% bonus shares



Volume

Tier 1 Perk (Invest $1,500+) — receive 5% bonus shares
Tier 2 Perk (Invest $2,500+) — receive 8% bonus shares
Tier 3 Perk (Invest $5,000+) — receive 10% bonus shares
Tier 4 Perk (Invest $10,000+) — receive 15% bonus shares
Tier 5 Perk (Invest $25,000+) — receive 20% bonus shares

*All perks occur when the offering is completed.
The 10% StartEngine O ‘B

TM] Relax will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all investments that are
committed by investors that are eligible for the StartEngine Crowdfunding Inc.
OWNWNer's bonus.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares
they purchase in this offering. For example, if vou buy 100 shares of Common Stock at
$1.46 / share, you will receive 110 shares of Common Stock, meaning you'll own 110
shares for $146. Fractional shares will not be distributed and share bonuses will be
determined by rounding down to the nearest whole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investors eligibility period. Investors eligible
for this bonus will also have priority if they are on a waitlist to invest and the company
surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest
should room in the offering become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.

Investors will only receive a single bonus, which will be the highest bonus rate they
are eligible for.

The Company and its Business

Company Overview

TM] Relax Inc is a health technology company that designs, manufactures, and
markets an oral orthopedic medical device sold to dentists to treat patients with
symptoms of temporomandibular joint disorder. TM] Relax also sells related software
and services.

The Company is committed to bringing the best user experience to its dentists and

end users through its innovative hardware, software algorithms, and services. The
Company’s business strategy leverages its unique ability to design and develop its own
medical device that uses novel technology and a novel method with the intent of being
either more affordable, more effective, and more efficient than other competitors to
treat temporomandibular joint disorder and associated symptoms such as headaches,
migraines, and muscle tension.



Products

TM] Relax: An oral orthopedic medical device that is available by prescription only
and is FDA cleared to be used in the prophylactic treatment of medically diagnosed
migraine pain as well as migraine associated tension-type headaches, by reducing
their signs and symptoms through reduction of trigeminally innervated muscular
activity, and; For the prevention of bruxism and TM] syndrome through reduction of
trigeminally innervated muscular activity. The product is sold to dentists to be used
by patients as end users.The product has completed in-house studies for safety and
efficacy. The company is planning to conduct third party clinical studies to further
validate claims and potentially expand the indications for use to include symptoms
related to ear pain.

Learn TM]: A continuing medical education course that is in development that
supports physician and dentist understanding of the subject field and the use of the
TM] Relax product. The product is sold to physicians and dentists.

A artificial intelligence SAAS is in development to aid dentists in the treatment of
temporomandibular joint disorder. We are continually engaging in research and
development of future products that use technology to improve effectiveness and
efficiency in healthcare.

We offer our products directly to dentists through our website, Internet advertising,
trade publication advertising, customer service call centers, direct mail advertising,
telemarketing and inbound content marketing.

Intellectual Property

Patents
Application or Registration #: 67/178,480

Title: ANOVEL DEVICE AND METHOD FOR THE TREATMENT OF
TEMPOROMANDIBULAR JOINT DISORDER

Description: Temporomandibular joint disorder is a condition which causes a
multitude of symptoms of the head and neck included but not limited to muscle
tension, headaches, and bruxism. The mandibular position at which the
temporomandibular complex routinely functions is a primary etiology of said
symptoms. We have developed a novel device and method regarding the subject
matter.

File Date: April 22, 2021
Grant Date: N/A
Country: USA

Trademarks




Application or Registration #; 97173367

Goods/Services: IC 044. US 100 101. G & S: Dentistry services; Dentistry services in
the field of TM] treatment; Dentistry services in the field of occlusion; Dentistry
services in the field of chronic pain treatment; Orthodontic services.

Mark: TM] Relax

File Date: December 15, 2021
Registration Date: N/A

Country: USA

Application or Registration #: 90570559

Goods/Services: Services IC 010. US 026 039 044, G & S: Medical instruments, namely,
orthopedic apparatus and instruments; Orthodontic appliances; Traction apparatus
for medical use; Medical apparatus for use in treating temporomandibular joint
disorder (TM]); Medical apparatus for use in treating headaches, muscle tension,
and/or bruxism; Medical devices for use in treating temporomandibular joint disorder
(TM]); Medical devices for use in treating headaches, muscle tension, and/or bruxism;
Medical instruments for use in treating temporomandibular joint disorder (TM]);
Medical instruments for use in treating headaches, muscle tension, and/or bruxism. IC
042. US 100 101. G & S: Computer network design and computer software design for
the the treatment of temporomandibular joint disorder (TM]); Research and
development of new products; Research and development of new products for others;
Scientific laboratory services; Software as a service (SAAS) services featuring software
for prevention and/or treatment of temporomandibular joint disorder (TM]); Software
as a service (SAAS) services featuring software for prevention and/or treatment of
temporomandibular joint disorder (TM]); Software as a service (SAAS) services,
namely, hosting software for use by others for use to prevent and/or treat
temporomandibular joint disorder (TM]); Data automation and collection service
using proprietary software to evaluate, analyze and collect service data.

Mark: TM] Relax

File Date: March 10, 2021

Registration Date: N/A

Country: USA

Application or Registration #; 97173338

Goods/Services: IC 044. US 100 101. G & S: Dentistry services; Dentistry services in
the field of occlusion; Dentistry services in the field of TM] treatment; Orthodontic
services; Cosmetic dentistry.

Mark: RightBite



File Date: December 15, 2021
Registration Date: N/A
Country: USA

Competitors and Industry

The Company’s primary competitors are NTI Appliance, Luco Hybrid OSA Appliance.

The dental market is a highly competitive business in the U.S. and worldwide. Our
products generally compete for market share with other established brands both
directly and indirectly. General competition in the market space include other over the
counter mouth guards and prescription mouth guards. These competitors can use
their resources and scale to rapidly respond to competitive pressures and changes in
consumer preferences by introducing new products, reducing prices or increasing
promotional activities. We believe our intellectual property including novel
technology, method of manufacturing, and clinical patient treatment will position our
company with clear product differentiation. We have engaged a medical device
reimbursement consultant to develop a novel reimbursement strategy which could
potentially be a significant differentiation from other competitors. Speed to market as
well as clearly demonstrating the efficacy, simplicity, and affordability to both
healthcare providers and end users via third party studies are the critical factors for
the success of our company.

Supply Chain and Customer Base

Raw materials essential to our businesses are purchased worldwide in the ordinary
course of business from numerous suppliers. In general, these materials are available
from multiple sources. We have successfully secured the materials necessary to meet
our requirements where there have been short-term imbalances between supply and
demand, but generally at higher prices than those historically paid.

The Company’s customers are dentists, dental practices, and educational markets in
healthcare.

Current Stage and Roadmap

Current Stage

The product is still in development with a working prototype and FDA clearance. The
product is undergoing final development to refine the overall clinical process, quality
control systems, reimbursement protocols, manufacturing process, development of
clinical education for health providers, and further clinical trials to further validate

claims and expand the indications of use. A public launch of the product is estimated
in 2023.

Road Map

Planned milestones in the near future are:



Completion of reimbursement study and strategy
Development of a regulatory strategy to expand the indications of use
Development of continuing education course for physicians and dentists

Development of synopsis and protocol for clinical trials to support reimbursement,
regulatory, and commercial goals

Hiring a VP of sales

Securing a leasehold for a larger manufacturing facility and headquarters
Regulatory Approvals:

The Company is dependent on the following regulatory approvals:

Line of Business: Medical Device

Government Agency: Food and Drug Administration

Type of Approval: 510K Premarket

Application Date: Mav 24, 2021

Grant Date: June 26, 2021

Our business has been and will continue to be subject to the Food and Drug
Administration and various other U.S. laws and regulations. Failure to comply with
these laws and regulations could subject us to administrative and legal proceedings
and actions by these various governmental bodies.

The Team

Officers and Directors

Name: Charles Sutera III
Charles Sutera I11's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

® Position: Chief Executive Officer
Dates of Service: October 06, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Responsible for overall business operations including company
growth, product development, intellectual property strategy, and distribution
strategy. Salary is $120,000.

¢ Position: Director
Dates of Service: October 06, 2021 - Present



Responsibilities: Responsible for duties as a director on the board of directors.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Aesthetic Smile Reconstruction PC
Title: President
Dates of Service: June 01, 2014 - Present
Responsibilities: Responsible for practice leadership, strategic growth, and
performing complex dental reconstructions and treatment of
temporomandibular joint disorder.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Moonwalker Innovations Inc
Title: CEO
Dates of Service: January 01, 2015 - December 15, 2021
Responsibilities: Responsible for overall business operations including product
development, intellectual property strategy, and distribution strategy

Name: Janna Melzer Sutera
Janna Melzer Sutera's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Chief Clinical Officer
Dates of Service: October 06, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Clinical affairs and medical education development. Salary is
$60,000.

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: October 06, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Responsible for duties as a director on the board of directors.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Stoneham Dental Care
Title: Dentist
Dates of Service: September 01, 2014 - Present
Responsibilities: Responsible for clinical practice of general dentistry including
all facets of direct patient care.

Risk Factors



The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its
financial condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all
companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and
technological developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).
Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed
companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding
whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, “us”, “our”, or “Company”)
involves a high degree of risk and should only be considered by those who can afford
the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any of the common
stock should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are sufficient to
enable them to indefinitely retain an illiquid investment. Each investor in the
Company should consider all of the information provided to such potential investor
regarding the Company as well as the following risk factors, in addition to the other
information listed in the Company’s Form C. The following risk factors are not
intended, and shall not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial
and other risks inherent in the investment in the Company.

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet our projections. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to find sufficient demand for our product,
that people think it’s a better option than a competing product, or that we will able to
provide the service at a level that allows the Company to make a profit and still attract
business.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed
companies that are valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation
of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess and you may risk
overpaving for your investment.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

Any common stock purchased through this crowdfunding campaign is subject to SEC
limitations of transfer. This means that the stock/note that you purchase cannot be
resold for a period of one year. The exception to this rule is if you are transferring the
stock back to the Company, to an “accredited investor,” as part of an offering
registered with the Commission, to a member of your family, trust created for the
benefit of your family, or in connection with your death or divorce.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12
months following your investment there will be restrictions on how you can resell the
securities you receive. More importantly, there is no established market for these



securities and there may never be one. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities
in the future, you may not be able to find a buyer. The Company may be acquired by
an existing player in the medical industry. However, that may never happen or it may
happen at a price that results in you losing money on this investment.

If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed

The Company, is offering common stock in the amount of up to $1,069,999.37 in this
offering, and may close on any investments that are made. Even if the maximum
amount is raised, the Company is likely to need additional funds in the future in order
to grow, and if it cannot raise those funds for whatever reason, including reasons
relating to the Company itself or the broader economy, it may not survive. If the
Company manages to raise only the minimum amount of funds, sought, it will have to
find other sources of funding for some of the plans outlined in “Use of Proceeds.”

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital.
We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital
requirements as we grow. Although interest rates are low, it is still a difficult
environment for obtaining credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when
we need it, we could be forced to raise additional equity capital, modify our growth
plans, or take some other action. Issuing more equity may require bringing on
additional investors. Securing these additional investors could require pricing our
equity below its current price. If so, your investment could lose value as a result of this
additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your ownership
percentage would be decreased with the addition of more investors. If we are unable
to find additional investors willing to provide capital, then it is possible that we will
choose to cease our sales activity. In that case, the only asset remaining to generate a
return on your investment could be our intellectual property. Even if we are not forced
to cease our sales activity, the unavailability of credit could result in the Company
performing below expectations, which could adversely impact the value of vour
investment.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings in
the future, which may reduce the value of your investment in the Common Stock.
Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating
results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such
designation, rights, preferences, and limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms
of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to the holders
of Common Stock. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of
Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms that are likely to
be more favorable than the terms of your investment, and possibly a lower purchase
price per share.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our
management team with respect to the application and allocation of the proceeds of
this Offering. The use of proceeds described below is an estimate based on our current



business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions
of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad
discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward-looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or
operational performance are hypothetical and are based on management's best
estimate of the probable results of our operations and will not have been reviewed by
our independent accountants. These projections will be based on assumptions which
management believes are reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not
materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond management's
control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and
such variances may be material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

We are reliant on one main type of service

All of our current services are variants on one type of service, providing a medical
device for the temporomandibular joint disorder. Our revenues are therefore
dependent upon the market for treatment of temporomandibular joint disorder.

Developing new products and technologies entails significant risks and uncertainties
We are currently in the post-market research and development stage and have
manufactured a working product for our TM] Relax medical device which is still in
process of further clinical trials. Delays or cost overruns in the development of our
TM] Relax and failure of the product to meet our performance estimates may be
caused by, among other things, unanticipated technological hurdles, difficulties in
manufacturing, changes to design and regulatory hurdles. Any of these events could
materially and adversely affect our operating performance and results of operations.

Minority Holder; Securities with Voting Rights

The security type that an investor is buying has voting rights attached to them.
However, vou will be part of the minority shareholders of the Company and have
agreed to appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the “CEQ”), or his or
her successor, as your voting proxy. You are trusting in management discretion in
making good business decisions that will grow your investments. Furthermore, in the
event of a liquidation of our company, vou will only be paid out if there is any cash
remaining after all of the creditors of our company have been paid out.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority
holder, and therefore must trust the management of the Company to make good
business decisions that grow your investment.

Insufficient Funds

The company might not sell enough securities in this offering to meet its operating
needs and fulfill its plans, in which case it will cease operating and you will get
nothing. Even if we sell all the common stock we are offering now, the Company will
(possibly) need to raise more funds in the future, and if it can’t get them, we will fail.
Even if we do make a successful offering in the future, the terms of that offering might



result in your investment in the company being worth less, because later investors
might get better terms.

This offering involves “rolling closings,” which may mean that earlier investors may
not have the benefit of information that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine
instruct the escrow agent to disburse offering funds to us. At that point, investors
whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors. All
early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not
uncommon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’
businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When such changes
happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amended to our Form C with
the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not vet been accepted will have the
right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose
subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and
will have no such right.

Our new product could fail to achieve the sales projections we expected

Our growth projections are based on an assumption that with an increased advertising
and marketing budget our products will be able to gain traction in the marketplace at
a faster rate than our current products have. It is possible that our new products will
fail to gain market acceptance for any number of reasons. If the new products fail to
achieve significant sales and acceptance in the marketplace, this could materially and
adversely impact the value of your investment.

We face significant market competition

We will compete with larger, established companies who currently have products on
the market and/or various respective product development programs. They may have
much better financial means and marketing/sales and human resources than us. They
may succeed in developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier than
us, or superior products than those developed by us. There can be no assurance that
competitors will render our technology or products obsolete or that the products
developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It
should further be assumed that competition will intensify.

We are an early stage company and have not yet generated any profits

TM] Relax Inc was formed on 10/06,/2021. Accordingly, the Company has a limited
history upon which an evaluation of its performance and future prospects can be
made. Our current and proposed operations are subject to all business risks associated
with new enterprises. These include likely fluctuations in operating results as the
Company reacts to developments in its market, managing its growth and the entry of
competitors into the market. We will only be able to pay dividends on any shares once
our directors determine that we are financially able to do so. TM] Relax Inc has
incurred a net loss and has had limited revenues generated since inception. There is
no assurance that we will be profitable in the next 3 years or generate sufficient
revenues to pay dividends to the holders of the shares.



We are an early stage company and have limited revenue and operating history

The Company has a short history, few customers, and effectively no revenue. If you
are investing in this company, it’s because you think that TM] Relax Inc is a good idea,
that the team will be able to successfully market, and sell the product or service, that
we can price them right and sell them to enough peoples so that the Company will
succeed. Further, we have never turned a profit and there is no assurance that we will
ever be profitable.

We have existing patents that we might not be able to protect properly

One of the Company's most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company's
owns 3 pending trademarks and 1 pending utility patent. We believe one of the most
valuable components of the Company is our intellectual property portfolio. Due to the
value, competitors may misappropriate or violate the rights owned by the Company.
The Company intends to continue to protect its intellectual property portfolio from
such violations. It is important to note that unforeseeable costs associated with such
practices may invade the capital of the Company.

We have pending patent approval’s that might be vulnerable

One of the Company's most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company's
intellectual property such as patents, trademarks, copyrights, Internet domain names,
and trade secrets may not be registered with the proper authorities. We believe one of
the most valuable components of the Company is our intellectual property portfolio.
Due to the value, competitors may misappropriate or violate the rights owned by the
Company. The Company intends to continue to protect its intellectual property
portfolio from such violations. It is important to note that unforeseeable costs
associated with such practices may invade the capital of the Company due to its
unregistered intellectual property.

Our trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or
ineffective

Intellectual property is a complex field of law in which few things are certain. It is
possible that competitors will be able to design around our intellectual property, find
prior art to invalidate it, or render the patents unenforceable through some other
mechanism. If competitors are able to bypass our trademark and copyright protection
without obtaining a sublicense, it is likely that the Company’s value will be materially
and adversely impacted. This could also impair the Company’s ability to compete in
the marketplace. Moreover, if our trademarks and copyrights are deemed
unenforceable, the Company will almost certainly lose any potential revenue it might
be able to raise by entering into sublicenses. This would cut off a significant potential
revenue stream for the Company.

The cost of enforcing our trademarks and copyrights could prevent us from enforcing
them

Trademark and copyright litigation has become extremely expensive. Even if we
believe that a competitor is infringing on one or more of our patents, trademarks, or
copyrights, we might choose not to file suit because we lack the cash to successfully
prosecute a multi-year litigation with an uncertain outcome; or because we believe



that the cost of enforcing our trademark(s) or copyright(s) outweighs the value of
winning the suit in light of the risks and consequences of losing it; or for some other
reason. Choosing not to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright(s) could have adverse
consequences for the Company, including undermining the credibility of our
intellectual property, reducing our ability to enter into sublicenses, and weakening
our attempts to prevent competitors from entering the market. As a result, if we are
unable to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright(s) because of the cost of enforcement,
your investment in the Company could be significantly and adversely affected.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other
highly qualified personnel in the future, could harm our business

To be successful, the Company requires capable people to run its day to day
operations. As the Company grows, it will need to attract and hire additional
employees in sales, marketing, design, development, operations, finance, legal,
human resources and other areas. Depending on the economic environment and the
Company’s performance, we may not be able to locate or attract qualified individuals
for such positions when we need them. We may also make hiring mistakes, which can
be costly in terms of resources spent in recruiting, hiring and investing in the
incorrect individual and in the time delay in locating the right emplovyee fit. If we are
unable to attract, hire and retain the right talent or make too many hiring mistakes, it
is likely our business will suffer from not having the right employees in the right
positions at the right time. This would likely adversely impact the value of your
investment.

Our ability to sell our product or service is dependent on outside government
regulation which can be subject to change at any time

Our ability to sell product is dependent on the outside government regulation such as
the FDA (Food and Drug Administration), FTC (Federal Trade Commission) and other
relevant government laws and regulations. The laws and regulations concerning the
selling of product may be subject to change and if they do then the selling of product
may no longer be in the best interest of the Company. At such point the Company may
no longer want to sell product and therefore your investment in the Company may be
affected.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business
We rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business functions for us,
including manufacturing, shipping, accounting, legal work, public relations,
advertising, retailing, and distribution. It is possible that some of these third parties
will fail to perform their services or will perform them in an unacceptable manner. It is
possible that we will experience delays, defects, errors, or other problems with their
work that will materially impact our operations and we may have little or no recourse
to recover damages for these losses. A disruption in these key or other suppliers’
operations could materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, your
investment could be adversely impacted by our reliance on third parties and their
performance.

The Company is vulnerable to hackers and cyber-attacks



As a business that utilizes internet communication, we may be vulnerable to hackers
who mayv access the data of our investors and the issuer companies that utilize our
platform. Further, any significant disruption in service on TM] Relax Inc or in its
computer systems could reduce the attractiveness of the platform and result in a loss
of investors and companies interested in using our platform. Further, we rely on a
third-party technology provider to provide some of our back-up technology. Any
disruptions of services or cyber-attacks either on our technology provider or on TM]
Relax Inc could harm our reputation and materially negatively impact our financial
condition and business.

We have a limited operating history upon which you can evaluate our performance,
and accordingly, our prospects must be considered in light of the risks that any new
company encounters.

We were incorporated under the laws of Delaware on October 6, 2021. Accordingly, we
have no history upon which an evaluation of our prospects and future performance
can be made. Our proposed operations are subject to all business risks associated with
a new enterprise. The likelihood of our creation of a viable business must be
considered in light of the problems, expenses, difficulties, complications, and delays
frequently encountered in connection with the inception of a business, operation in a
competitive industry, and the continued development of advertising, promotions, and
a corresponding client base. We anticipate that our operating expenses will increase
for the near future. There can be no assurances that we will ever operate profitably.
You should consider the Company’s business, operations and prospects in light of the
risks, expenses and challenges faced as an early-stage company.

We may face potential difficulties in obtaining capital.

We may have difficulty raising needed capital in the future as a result of, among other
factors, our lack of an approved product and revenues from sales, as well as the
inherent business risks associated with our company and present and future market
conditions. Our business currently does not generate any sales and future sources of
revenue may not be sufficient to meet our future capital requirements. We will require
additional funds to execute our business strategy and conduct our operations. If
adequate funds are unavailable, we may be required to delay, reduce the scope of or
eliminate one or more of our research, development or commercialization programs,
product launches or marketing efforts, any of which may materially harm our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

In order for the Company to compete and grow, it must attract, recruit, retain and
develop the necessary personnel who have the needed experience.

Recruiting and retaining highly qualified personnel is critical to our success. These
demands may require us to hire additional personnel and will require our existing
management personnel to develop additional expertise. We face intense competition
for personnel. The failure to attract and retain personnel or to develop such expertise
could delay or halt the development and commercialization of our product candidates.
If we experience difficulties in hiring and retaining personnel in key positions, we
could suffer from delays in product development, loss of customers and sales and
diversion of management resources, which could adversely affect operating results.



Our consultants and advisors may be employed by third parties and may have
commitments under consulting or advisory contracts with third parties that may limit
their availability to us.

The development and commercialization of our products and services is highly
competitive.

We face competition with respect to any products that we may seek to develop or
commercialize in the future. Our competitors include major companies worldwide.
Many of our competitors have significantly greater financial, technical and human
resources than we have and superior expertise in research and development and
marketing approved products and services and thus may be better equipped than us to
develop and commercialize products and services. These competitors also compete
with us in recruiting and retaining qualified personnel and acquiring technologies.
Smaller or early stage companies may also prove to be significant competitors,
particularly through collaborative arrangements with large and established
companies. Accordingly, our competitors may commercialize products more rapidly or
effectively than we are able to, which would adversely affect our competitive position,
the likelihood that our products and services will achieve initial market acceptance
and our ability to generate meaningful additional revenues from our products.

We rely on other companies to provide raw materials for our products.

We depend on these suppliers and subcontractors to meet our contractual obligations
to our customers and conduct our operations. Our ability to meet our obligations to
our customers may be adversely affected if suppliers or subcontractors do not provide
the agreed-upon supplies or perform the agreed-upon services in compliance with
customer requirements and in a timely and cost-effective manner. Likewise, the
quality of our products may be adversely impacted if companies to whom we delegate
manufacture of major components or subsystems for our products, or from whom we
acquire such items, do not provide raw materials which meet required specifications
and perform to our and our customers’ expectations. Our suppliers may be less likely
than us to be able to quickly recover from natural disasters and other events beyond
their control and may be subject to additional risks such as financial problems that
limit their ability to conduct their operations. The risk of these adverse effects may be
greater in circumstances where we rely on only one or two subcontractors or suppliers
for a particular raw material.

We depend on third-party service providers and outsource providers for a variety of
services and we outsource a number of our non-core functions and operations.

In certain instances, we rely on single or limited service providers and outsourcing
vendors around the world because the relationship is advantageous due to quality,
price, or lack of alternative sources. If production or service was interrupted and we
were not able to find alternate third-party providers, we could experience disruptions
in manufacturing and operations including product shortages, higher freight costs and
re-engineering costs. If outsourcing services are interrupted or not performed or the
performance is poor, this could impact our ability to process, record and report
transactions with our customers and other constituents. Such interruptions in the
provision of supplies and/or services could result in our inability to meet customer



demand, damage our reputation and customer relationships and adversely affect our
business.

We depend on third party providers, suppliers and licensors to supply some of the
hardware, software and operational support necessary to provide some of our services.
We obtain these materials from a limited number of vendors, some of which do not
have a long operating history, or which may not be able to continue to supply the
equipment and services we desire. Some of our hardware, software and operational
support vendors represent our sole source of supply or have, either through contract
or as a result of intellectual property rights, a position of some exclusivity. If demand
exceeds these vendors’ capacity or if these vendors experience operating or financial
difficulties or are otherwise unable to provide the equipment or services we need in a
timely manner, at our specifications and at reasonable prices, our ability to provide
some services might be materially adversely affected, or the need to procure or
develop alternative sources of the affected materials or services might delay our ability
to serve our customers. These events could materially and adversely affect our ability
to retain and attract customers, and have a material negative impact on our
operations, business, financial results and financial condition.

As a distributor of oral appliances, our business depends on developing and
maintaining close and productive relationships with our vendors.

We depend on our vendors to sell us quality products at favorable prices. Many factors
outside our control, including, without limitation, raw material shortages, inadequate
manufacturing capacity, labor disputes, transportation disruptions or weather
conditions, could adversely affect our vendors’ ability to deliver to us quality
merchandise at favorable prices in a timely manner. Furthermore, financial or
operational difficulties with a particular vendor could cause that vendor to increase
the cost of the products or decrease the quality of the products we purchase from it.
Vendor consolidation could also limit the number of suppliers from which we may
purchase products and could materially affect the prices we pay for these products. We
would suffer an adverse impact if our vendors limit or cancel the return privileges that
currently protect us from inventory obsolescence.

Quality management plays an essential role in determining and meeting customer
requirements, preventing defects, improving the Company’s products and services and
maintaining the integrity of the data that supports the safety and efficacy of our
products.

Our future success depends on our ability to maintain and continuously improve our
quality management program. An inability to address a quality or safety issue in an
effective and timely manner may also cause negative publicity, a loss of customer
confidence in us or our current or future products, which may result in the loss of
sales and difficulty in successfully launching new products. In addition, a successful
claim brought against us in excess of available insurance or not covered by
indemnification agreements, or any claim that results in significant adverse publicity
against us, could have an adverse effect on our business and our reputation.

One of the potential risks we face in the distribution of our products is liability



resulting from counterfeit or tainted products infiltrating the supply chain.

Because we source ingredients from various sources, we rely on various suppliers and
their quality control measures. While we have procedures to maintain the highest
quality levels in our products, we may be subject to faulty, spoiled or tainted
ingredients or components in our products, which would negatively affect our
products and our customers’ experience with them and could decrease customer
demand for our products. In addition, if there are serious illness or injury due to our
products, there can be no assurance that the insurance coverage we maintain is
sufficient or will be available in adequate amounts or at a reasonable cost, or that
indemnification agreements will provide us with adequate protection.

Manufacturing or design defects, unanticipated use of our products, or inadequate
disclosure of risks relating to the use of the products can lead to injury or other
adverse events.

These events could lead to recalls or safety alerts relating to our products (either
voluntary or required by governmental authorities) and could result, in certain cases,
in the removal of a product from the market. Any recall could result in significant
costs as well as negative publicity that could reduce demand for our products.
Personal injuries relating to the use of our products can also result in product liability
claims being brought against us. In some circumstances, such adverse events could
also cause delays in new product approvals. Similarly, negligence in performing our
services can lead to injury or other adverse events.

We may implement new lines of business or offer new products and services within
existing lines of business.

There are substantial risks and uncertainties associated with these efforts, particularly
in instances where the markets are not fully developed. In developing and marketing
new lines of business and/or new products and services, we may invest significant
time and resources. Initial timetables for the introduction and development of new
lines of business and/or new products or services may not be achieved and price and
profitability targets may not prove feasible. We may not be successful in introducing
new products and services in response to industry trends or developments in
technology, or those new products may not achieve market acceptance. As a result, we
could lose business, be forced to price products and services on less advantageous
terms to retain or attract clients, or be subject to cost increases. As a result, our
business, financial condition or results of operations may be adversely affected.

In general, demand for our products and services is highly correlated with general
economic conditions.

A substantial portion of our revenue is derived from discretionary spending by
individuals, which typically falls during times of economic instability. Declines in
economic conditions in the U.S. or in other countries in which we operate may
adversely impact our consolidated financial results. Because such declines in demand
are difficult to predict, we or the industry may have increased excess capacity as a
result. An increase in excess capacity may result in declines in prices for our products
and services.



The use of individually identifiable data by our business, our business associates and
third parties is regulated at the state, federal and international levels.

Costs associated with information security — such as investment in technology, the
costs of compliance with consumer protection laws and costs resulting from consumer
fraud - could cause our business and results of operations to suffer materially.
Additionally, the success of our online operations depends upon the secure
transmission of confidential information over public networks, including the use of
cashless payments. The intentional or negligent actions of employees, business
associates or third parties may undermine our security measures. As a result,
unauthorized parties may obtain access to our data systems and misappropriate
confidential data. There can be no assurance that advances in computer capabilities,
new discoveries in the field of cryptography or other developments will prevent the
compromise of our customer transaction processing capabilities and personal data. If
any such compromise of our security or the security of information residing with our
business associates or third parties were to occur, it could have a material adverse
effect on our reputation, operating results and financial condition. Any compromise of
our data security may materially increase the costs we incur to protect against such
breaches and could subject us to additional legal risk.

Through our operations, we collect and store certain personal information that our
customers provide to purchase products or services, enroll in promotional programs,
register on our web site, or otherwise communicate and interact with us.

We may share information about such persons with vendors that assist with certain
aspects of our business. Security could be compromised and confidential customer or
business information misappropriated. Loss of customer or business information
could disrupt our operations, damage our reputation, and expose us to claims from
customers, financial institutions, payment card associations and other persons, any of
which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations. In addition, compliance with tougher privacy and information security
laws and standards may result in significant expense due to increased investment in
technology and the development of new operational processes.

Security breaches and other disruptions could compromise our information and
expose us to liability, which would cause our business and reputation to suffer.

We collect and store sensitive data, including intellectual property, our proprietary
business information and that of our customers, suppliers and business partners, and
personally identifiable information of our customers and employees, in our data
centers and on our networks. The secure processing, maintenance and transmission of
this information is critical to our operations and business strategy. Despite our
security measures, our information technology and infrastructure may be vulnerable
to attacks by hackers or breached due to employee error, malfeasance or other
disruptions. Any such breach could compromise our networks and the information
stored there could be accessed, publicly disclosed, lost or stolen. Any such access,
disclosure or other loss of information could result in legal claims or proceedings,
liability under laws that protect the privacy of personal information, and regulatory
penalties, disrupt our operations and the services we provide to customers, and
damage our reputation, and cause a loss of confidence in our products and services,



which could adversely affect our business/operating margins, revenues and
competitive position.

An intentional or unintentional disruption, failure, misappropriation or corruption of
our network and information systems could severely affect our business.

Such an event might be caused by computer hacking, computer viruses, worms and
other destructive or disruptive software, "cyber attacks” and other malicious activity,
as well as natural disasters, power outages, terrorist attacks and similar events. Such
events could have an adverse impact on us and our customers, including degradation
of service, service disruption, excessive call volume to call centers and damage to our
plant, equipment and data. In addition, our future results could be adversely affected
due to the theft, destruction, loss, misappropriation or release of confidential
customer data or intellectual property. Operational or business delays may result from
the disruption of network or information systems and the subsequent remediation
activities. Moreover, these events may create negative publicity resulting in
reputation or brand damage with customers.

We are subject to the risk of substantial environmental liability and limitations on our
operations due to environmental laws and regulations

We are subject to extensive federal, state, local and foreign environmental, health and
safety laws and regulations concerning matters such as air emissions, wastewater
discharges, solid and hazardous waste handling and disposal and the investigation and
remediation of contamination. The risks of substantial costs and liabilities related to
compliance with these laws and regulations are an inherent part of our business, and
future conditions may develop, arise or be discovered that create substantial
environmental compliance or remediation liabilities and costs. Compliance with
environmental, health and safety legislation and regulatory requirements may prove
to be more limiting and costly than we anticipate. We may be subject to legal
proceedings brought by private parties or governmental authorities with respect to
environmental matters, including matters involving alleged property damage or
personal injury. New laws and regulations, including those which may relate to
emissions of greenhouse gases, stricter enforcement of existing laws and regulations,
the discovery of previously unknown contamination or the imposition of new clean-up
requirements could require us to incur costs or become the basis for new or increased
liabilities that could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition or results of operations.

Our global operations are reguired to comply with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices
Act and similar anti-bribery laws in other jurisdictions and with U.S. and foreign
export control, trade embargo and customs laws.

If we fail to comply with them, we could suffer civil and criminal sanctions.

Our international operations could be affected by currency fluctuations, capital and
exchange controls, expropriation and other restrictive government actions, changes in
intellectual property legal protections and remedies, trade regulations and procedures
and actions affecting approval, production, pricing, and marketing of, reimbursement
for and access to our products, as well as by political unrest, unstable governments



and legal systems and inter-governmental disputes.

Any of these changes could adversely affect our business. Many emerging markets
have experienced growth rates in excess of the world’s largest markets, leading to an
increased contribution to the industry’s global performance. There is no assurance
that these countries will continue to sustain these growth rates. In addition, some
emerging market countries may be particularly vulnerable to periods of financial
instability or significant currency fluctuations or may have limited resources for
healthcare spending, which can adversely affect our results.

We are required to comply with various import laws and export control and economic
sanctions laws, which may affect our transactions with certain customers, business
partners and other persons and dealings between our employees and subsidiaries.

In certain circumstances, export control and economic sanctions regulations may
prohibit the export of certain products, services and technologies. In other
circumstances, we may be required to obtain an export license before exporting the
controlled item. Compliance with the various import laws that apply to our businesses
can restrict our access to, and increase the cost of obtaining, certain products and at
times can interrupt our supply of imported inventory.

The Company’s success depends on the experience and skill of the board of directors,
its executive officers and key employees.

In particular, the Company is dependent on Charles Sutera and Janna Melzer Sutera
who are CEOQ, October 2021 - Present and Chief Clinical Officer, October 2021 -
Present of the Company. The Company has or intends to enter into employment
agreements with Charles Sutera and Janna Melzer Sutera although there can be no
assurance that it will do so or that they will continue to be employed by the Company
for a particular period of time. The loss of Charles Sutera and Janna Melzer Sutera or
any member of the board of directors or executive officer could harm the Company’s
business, financial condition, cash flow and results of operations.

We rely on various intellectual property rights, including patents and trademarks in
order to operate our business.

Such intellectual property rights, however, may not be sufficiently broad or otherwise
may not provide us a significant competitive advantage. In addition, the steps that we
have taken to maintain and protect our intellectual property may not prevent it from
being challenged, invalidated, circumvented or designed-around, particularly in
countries where intellectual property rights are not highly developed or protected. In
some circumstances, enforcement may not be available to us because an infringer has
a dominant intellectual property position or for other business reasons, or countries
may require compulsory licensing of our intellectual property. Our failure to obtain or
maintain intellectual property rights that convey competitive advantage, adequately
protect our intellectual property or detect or prevent circumvention or unauthorized
use of such property, could adversely impact our competitive position and results of
operations. We also rely on nondisclosure and noncompetition agreements with
employees, consultants and other parties to protect, in part, trade secrets and other
proprietary rights. There can be no assurance that these agreements will adequately
protect our trade secrets and other proprietary rights and will not be breached, that we



will have adequate remedies for any breach, that others will not independently
develop substantially equivalent proprietary information or that third parties will not
otherwise gain access to our trade secrets or other proprietary rights. As we expand
our business, protecting our intellectual property will become increasingly important.
The protective steps we have taken may be inadequate to deter our competitors from
using our proprietary information. In order to protect or enforce our patent rights, we
may be required to initiate litigation against third parties, such as infringement
lawsuits. Also, these third parties may assert claims against us with or without
provocation. These lawsuits could be expensive, take significant time and could divert
management’s attention from other business concerns. The law relating to the scope
and validity of claims in the technology field in which we operate is still evolving and,
consequently, intellectual property positions in our industry are generally uncertain.
We cannot assure you that we will prevail in any of these potential suits or that the
damages or other remedies awarded, if any, would be commercially valuable.

From time to time, third parties may claim that one or more of our products or
services infringe their intellectual property rights.

Any dispute or litigation regarding patents or other intellectual property could be
costly and time-consuming due to the complexity of our technology and the
uncertainty of intellectual property litigation and could divert our management and
key personnel from our business operations. A claim of intellectual property
infringement could force us to enter into a costly or restrictive license agreement,
which might not be available under acceptable terms or at all, could require us to
redesign our products, which would be costly and time-consuming, and/or could
subject us to an injunction against development and sale of certain of our products or
services. We may have to pay substantial damages, including damages for past
infringement if it is ultimately determined that our products infringe on a third
party’'s proprietary rights. Even if these claims are without merit, defending a lawsuit
takes significant time, may be expensive and may divert management’s attention from
other business concerns. Any public announcements related to litigation or
interference proceedings initiated or threatened against us could cause our business
to be harmed. Our intellectual property portfolio may not be useful in asserting a
counterclaim, or negotiating a license, in response to a claim of intellectual property
infringement. In certain of our businesses we rely on third party intellectual property
licenses and we cannot ensure that these licenses will be available to us in the future
on favorable terms or at all.

The amount of capital the Company is attempting to raise in this Offering is not
enough to sustain the Company’s current business plan.

In order to achieve the Company’s near and long-term goals, the Company will need
to procure funds in addition to the amount raised in the Offering. There is no
guarantee the Company will be able to raise such funds on acceptable terms or at all.
If we are not able to raise sufficient capital in the future, we will not be able to execute
our business plan, our continued operations will be in jeopardy and we may be forced
to cease operations and sell or otherwise transfer all or substantially all of our
remaining assets, which could cause an Investor to lose all or a portion of his or her
investment,



We have not prepared any audited financial statements.

Therefore, you have no audited financial information regarding the Company’s
capitalization or assets or liabilities on which to make your investment decision. If
you feel the information provided is insufficient, you should not invest in the
Company.

We are subject to income taxes as well as non-income based taxes, such as payroll,
sales, use, value-added, net worth, property and goods and services taxes, in both the
U.S. and various foreign jurisdictions.

Significant judgment is required in determining our provision for income taxes and
other tax liabilities. In the ordinary course of our business, there are many
transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
Although we believe that our tax estimates are reasonable: (i) there is no assurance
that the final determination of tax audits or tax disputes will not be different from
what is reflected in our income tax provisions, expense amounts for non-income
based taxes and accruals and (ii) any material differences could have an adverse effect
on our financial position and results of operations in the period or periods for which
determination is made.

We are not subject to Sarbanes-Oxley regulations and lack the financial controls and
safeguards required of public companies.

We do not have the internal infrastructure necessary, and are not required, to
complete an attestation about our financial controls that would be required under
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. There can be no assurance that there
are no significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in the quality of our financial
controls. We expect to incur additional expenses and diversion of management’s time
if and when it becomes necessary to perform the system and process evaluation,
testing and remediation required in order to comply with the management
certification and auditor attestation requirements.

The Company has indicated that it has engaged in certain transactions with related
persons.

Please see the section of this Memorandum entitled "Transactions with Related
Persons and Conflicts of Interest” for further details.

Changes in employment laws or regulation could harm our performance.

Various federal and state labor laws govern our relationship with our employees and
affect operating costs. These laws include minimum wage requirements, overtime pay,
healthcare reform and the implementation of the Patient Protection and Affordable
Care Act, unemployment tax rates, workers’ compensation rates, citizenship
requirements, union membership and sales taxes. A number of factors could adversely
affect our operating results, including additional government-imposed increases in
minimum wages, overtime pay, paid leaves of absence and mandated health benefits,
mandated training for employees, increased tax reporting and tax payment, changing
regulations from the National Labor Relations Board and increased employee
litigation including claims relating to the Fair Labor Standards Act.



The Company’s business operations may be materially adversely affected by a
pandemic such as the Coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak.

In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus was reported to have surfaced in
Wuhan, China, which spread throughout other parts of the world, including the United
States. On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of
the coronavirus disease (COVID-19) a "Public Health Emergency of International
Concern.” On January 31, 2020, U.S. Health and Human Services Secretary Alex M.
Azar Il declared a public health emergency for the United States to aid the U.S.
healthcare community in responding to COVID-19, and on March 11, 2020 the World
Health Organization characterized the outbreak as a “pandemic.” COVID-19 resulted
in a widespread health crisis that adversely affected the economies and financial
markets worldwide. The Company’s business could be materially and adversely
affected. The extent to which COVID-19 impacts the Company’s business will depend
on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted,
including new information which may emerge concerning the severity of COVID-19
and the actions to contain COVID-19 or treat its impact, among others. If the
disruptions posed by COVID-19 or other matters of global concern continue for an
extended period of time, the Company’s operations may be materially adversely
affected.

We face risks related to health epidemics and other outbreaks, which could
significantly disrupt the Company’s operations and could have a material adverse
impact on us.

The outbreak of pandemics and epidemics could materially and adversely affect the
Company’s business, financial condition, and results of operations. If a pandemic
occurs in areas in which we have material operations or sales, the Company’s business
activities originating from affected areas, including sales, materials, and supply chain
related activities, could be adversely affected. Disruptive activities could include the
temporary closure of facilities used in the Company’s supply chain processes,
restrictions on the export or shipment of products necessary to run the Company’s
business, business closures in impacted areas, and restrictions on the Company’s
employees’ or consultants’ ability to travel and to meet with customers, vendors or
other business relationships. The extent to which a pandemic or other health outbreak
impacts the Company’s results will depend on future developments, which are highly
uncertain and cannot be predicted, including new information which may emerge
concerning the severity of a virus and the actions to contain it or treat its impact,
among others. Pandemics can also result in social, economic, and labor instability
which may adversely impact the Company’s business. If the Company’s employees or
employees of any of the Company’s vendors, suppliers or customers become ill or are
gquarantined and in either or both events are therefore unable to work, the Company’s
operations could be subject to disruption. The extent to which a pandemic affects the
Company’s results will depend on future developments that are highly uncertain and
cannot be predicted.

We face risks relating to public health conditions such as the COVID-19 pandemic,
which could adversely affect the Company’s customers, business, and results of
operations.



Our business and prospects could be materially adversely affected by the COVID-19
pandemic or recurrences of that or any other such disease in the future. Material
adverse effects from COVID-19 and similar occurrences could result in numerous
known and currently unknown ways including from quarantines and lockdowns which
impair the Company’s business including marketing and sales efforts, supply chain,
etc. Quarantine due to illness may in the future negatively affect your employees and
their ability to perform their duties. Quarantine due to illness may in the future
negatively affect our suppliers, their emplovyees, and their overall ability to fulfill
orders. If the Company purchases materials from suppliers in affected areas, the
Company may not be able to procure such products in a timely manner. The effects of
a pandemic can place travel restrictions on key personnel which could have a material
impact on the business. In addition, a significant outbreak of contagious diseases in
the human population could result in a widespread health crisis that could adversely
affect the economies and financial markets of many countries, resulting in an
economic downturn that could reduce the demand for the Company’s products and
impair the Company’s business prospects including as a result of being unable to raise
additional capital on acceptable terms to us, if at all.

Successful development of our products is uncertain.

The product candidates that we expect to develop are based on processes and
methodologies that are not currently widely employed. Our development of current
and future product candidates is subject to the risks of failure and delay inherent in
the development of new products and products based on new technologies, including:
* delays in product development, clinical testing, or manufacturing; * unplanned
expenditures in product development, clinical testing, or manufacturing; * failure to
receive regulatory approvals; * inability to manufacture on our own, or through any
others, product candidates on a commercial scale; * failure to achieve market
acceptance; and * emergence of superior or equivalent products. Because of these
risks, our research and development efforts may not result in any commercially viable
products. If a significant portion of these development efforts are not successfully
completed, required regulatory approvals are not obtained, or any approved products
are not commercially successfully, our business, financial condition, and results of
operations may be materially harmed.

Certain provisions of the Health Care Reform Law could affect us adversely.

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act as amended by the Health Care and
Education Reconciliation Act (the Healthcare Reform Law), each enacted in March
2010, generally known as the Health Care Reform Law, significantly expand health
insurance coverage to uninsured Americans and changes the way health care is
financed by both governmental and private pavers. Additionally, further federal and
state proposals for health care reform are likely. Such regulation could have a negative
effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

The Health Care Reform Law 2.3% excise tax on domestic sales of medical devices by
manufacturers and importers beginning in 20135, and the fee on branded prescription
drugs and biologics that was implemented in 2011, may adversely affect sales and cost
of goods sold.



For example, (i) where we purchase medical devices from third-party manufacturers,
the manufacturers may increase their prices to cover their payment of the excise tax
and our costs to purchase such medical devices may therefore increase and (ii) where
we manufacture medical devices or are the importer of record, our cost of goods sold
have increased because we are subject to paying the excise tax.

Political, economic and regulatory influences are subjecting the healthcare industry to
potential fundamental changes that could substantially affect our results of
operations.

Government and private sector initiatives to limit the growth of healthcare costs,
including price regulation, competitive pricing, coverage and payment policies,
comparative effectiveness of therapies, technology assessments and alternative
payment models, are continuing in many countries where we do business, including
the U.S.. These changes are causing the marketplace to put increased emphasis on the
delivery of more cost-effective treatments. As a U.S. headquartered Company with
significant sales in the U.S., this healthcare reform legislation will materially impact/is
materially impacting us. Certain provisions of the legislation will not be effective for a
number of years and it is unclear what the full impact of the legislation will be.
Provisions of this legislation, including Medicare provisions aimed at improving
quality and decreasing costs, comparative effectiveness research, an independent
payment advisory board, and pilot programs to evaluate alternative payment
methodologies, could meaningfully change the way healthcare is developed and
delivered, and may adversely affect our business and results of operations. Further, we
cannot predict what healthcare programs and regulations will be ultimately
implemented at the federal or state level, or the effect of any future legislation or
regulation in the U.S. or internationally. However, any changes that lower
reimbursements for our products, reduce medical procedure volumes or increase cost
containment pressures on us or other participants in the healthcare industry could
adversely affect our business and results of operations.

Changes to government health care programs that reduce payments under Medicare
and Medicaid may negatively impact payments from commercial third-party payers.
The Healthcare Reform Law will result in increased state legislative and regulatory
changes in order for states to comply with new federal mandates, such as the
requirement to establish or participate in Exchanges and to participate in grants and
other incentive opportunities. In its June 28, 2012 ruling, the U.S. Supreme Court
struck down the portion of the Health Reform Law that would have allowed the
Department of Health and Human Services to penalize states that do not implement
the Medicaid expansion provisions with the loss of existing federal Medicaid funding.
Thus, states may opt not to implement the expansion. In some cases, commercial
third-party payors rely on all or portions of Medicare payment systems to determine
payment rates. Current or future health care reform and deficit reduction efforts,
changes in laws or regulations regarding government health care programs, other
changes in the administration of government health care programs and changes to
commercial third-party payers in response to health care reform and other changes to
government health care programs could have a material, adverse effect on our
financial position and results of operations.



Privacy laws and regulations could restrict our ability or the ability of our customers to
obtain, use or disseminate patient information, or could require us to incur significant
additional costs to re-design our products.

State, federal and foreign laws, such as the federal Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), regulate the confidentiality of sensitive personal
information and the circumstances under which such information may be released.
These and future laws could have an adverse impact on our results of operations.
Other health information standards, such as regulations under HIPAA, establish
standards regarding electronic health data transmissions and transaction code set
rules for specified electronic transactions, for example transactions involving claims
submissions to third party payors. These also continue to evolve and are often unclear
and difficult to apply. In addition, under the federal Health Information Technology
for Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH Act), which was passed in 2009, many
businesses that were previously only indirectly subject to federal HIPAA privacy and
security rules became directly subject to such rules because the businesses serve as
"business associates” to our customers. On January 17, 2013, the Office for Civil Rights
of the Department of Health and Human Services released a final rule implementing
the HITECH Act and making certain other changes to HIPAA privacy and security
requirements. Compliance has increased the requirements applicable to some of our
businesses. Failure to maintain the confidentiality of sensitive personal information in
accordance with the applicable regulatory requirements, or to abide by electronic
health data transmission standards, could expose us to breach of contract claims,

fines and penalties, costs for remediation and harm to our reputation.

The healthcare industry is highly regulated.

We are subject to regulation in the U.S. at both the federal and state level and in
foreign countries. In addition, the U.S. federal and state governments have allocated
greater resources to the enforcement of these laws. If we fail to comply with these
regulatory requirements, or if allegations are made that we failed to comply, our
results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

Products that we manufacture, source, distribute or market are required to comply
with regulatory requirements.

To lawfully operate our businesses, we are required to hold permits, licenses and other
regulatory approvals from, and to comply with operating and security standards of,
governmental bodies. Failure to maintain or renew necessary permits, licenses or
approvals, or noncompliance or concerns over noncompliance may result in
suspension of our ability to distribute, import or manufacture products, product
recalls or seizures, or criminal and civil sanctions and could have an adverse effect on
our results of operations and financial condition.

The manufacture, distribution, marketing and use of our products are subject to
extensive regulation and increased scrutiny by the Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) and other regulatory authorities globally.

Any new product must undergo lengthy and rigorous testing and other extensive,
costly and time-consuming procedures mandated by FDA and foreign regulatory
authorities. Changes to current products may be subject to vigorous review, including



additional 510(k) and other regulatory submissions, and approvals are not certain. Our
facilities must be approved and licensed prior to production and remain subject to
inspection from time to time thereafter. Failure to comply with the requirements of
FDA or other regulatory authorities, including a failed inspection or a failure in our
adverse event reporting system, could result in adverse inspection reports, warning
letters, product recalls or seizures, monetary sanctions, injunctions to halt the
manufacture and distribution of products, civil or criminal sanctions, refusal of a
government to grant approvals or licenses, restrictions on operations or withdrawal of
existing approvals and licenses. Any of these actions could cause a loss of customer
confidence in us and our products, which could adversely affect our sales and results
of operations.

The sales, marketing and pricing of products and relationships that pharmaceutical
and medical device companies have with healthcare providers are under increased
scrutiny by federal, state and foreign government agencies.

Compliance with the Anti-Kickback Statute, False Claims Act, Food, Drug and
Cosmetic Act (including as these laws relate to off-label promotion of products) and
other healthcare related laws, as well as competition, data and patient privacy and
export and import laws is under increased focus by the agencies charged with
overseeing such activities, including FDA, Office of Inspector General (OIG),
Department of Justice (DO]) and the Federal Trade Commission. The DO] and the
Securities and Exchange Commission have also increased their focus on the
enforcement of the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA), particularly as it relates
to the conduct of pharmaceutical companies.

Federal and State Laws Pertaining to Healthcare Fraud and Abuse Could Adversely
Affect Our Business.

We are subject to various federal and state laws targeting fraud and abuse in the
healthcare industry, including anti-kickback laws, false claims laws, laws constraining
the sales, marketing and other promotional activities of manufacturers of medical
devices by limiting the kinds of financial arrangements we may enter into with
physicians, hospitals, laboratories and other potential purchasers of medical devices,
laws requiring the reporting of certain transactions between us and healthcare
professionals and HIPAA, as amended by HITECH, which governs the conduct of
certain electronic healthcare transactions and protects security and privacy of
protected health information. Violations of these laws are punishable by criminal or
civil sanctions, including substantial fines, imprisonment and exclusion from
participation in government healthcare programs such as Medicare and Medicaid.
Many of the existing requirements are new and have not been definitively interpreted
by state authorities or courts, and available guidance is limited. Unless and until we
are in full compliance with these laws, we could face enforcement action and fines and
other penalties, and could receive adverse publicity, all of which could materially
harm our business. In addition, changes in or evolving interpretations of these laws,
regulations, or administrative or judicial interpretations, may require us to change our
business practices or subject our business practices to legal challenges, which could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.



We rely on a small group of third-party distributors to effectively distribute our
products outside the United States.

We depend, in part, on medical device distributors for the marketing and selling of our
products in most geographies. We depend on these distributors” efforts to market our
products, yet we are unable to control their efforts completely. These distributors
tyvpically sell a variety of other, non-competing products that may limit the resources
they dedicate to selling our products. In addition, we are unable to ensure that our
distributors comply with all applicable laws regarding the sale of our products. If our
distributors fail to effectively market and sell our products, in full compliance with
applicable laws, our operating results and business may suffer. Recruiting and
retaining qualified third-party distributors and training them in our technology and
product offerings require significant time and resources. To develop and expand our
distribution, we must continue to scale and improve our processes and procedures
that support our distributors. Further, if our relationship with a successful distributor
terminates, we may be unable to replace that distributor without disruption to our
business. If we fail to maintain relationships with our distributors, fail to develop new
relationships with other distributors, including in new markets, fail to manage, train
or incentivize existing distributors effectively, or fail to provide distributors with
competitive products on attractive terms, or if these distributors are not successful in
their sales efforts, our revenue may decrease and our operating results, reputation and
business may be harmed.

The commercial success of our products will depend in part upon the level of
reimbursement we receive from third parties for the cost of our products to users.

The commercial success of any product will depend, in part, on the extent to which
reimbursement for the costs of our products and related treatments will be available
from third-party payors such as government health administration authorities, private
health insurers, managed care programs, and other organizations. Adequate third-
party insurance coverage may not be available for us to establish and maintain price
levels that are sufficient for us to continue our business or for realization of an
appropriate return on investment in product development.

If we are unable to educate physicians on the safe and effective use of our products, we
may be unable to achieve our expected growth.

An important part of our sales process includes the education of physicians on the safe
and effective use of our products. There is a learning process for physicians to become
proficient in the use of our products and it typically takes several procedures for a
physician to become comfortable using the product. If a physician experiences
difficulties during an initial procedure or otherwise, that physician may be less likely
to continue to use our product, or to recommend it to other physicians. It is critical to
the success of our commercialization efforts to educate physicians on the proper use
of the product, and to provide them with adequate product support during clinical
procedures. It is important for our growth that these physicians advocate for the
benefits of our products in the broader marketplace. If physicians are not properly
trained, they may misuse or ineffectively use our products. This may also result in
unsatisfactory patient outcomes, patient injuries, negative publicity or lawsuits
against us, any of which could have an adverse effect on our business.



The design, manufacture and marketing of the medical devices we produce entail an
inherent risk of product liability claims.

Manufacturing and marketing of our commercial products, and clinical testing of our
products under development, may expose us to product liability and other tort claims.
Although we have, and intend to maintain, liability insurance, the coverage limits of
our insurance policies may not be adequate and one or more successful claims brought
against us may have a material adverse effect on our business and results of
operations. There are a number of factors that could result in an unsafe condition or
injury to, or death of, a patient with respect to these or other products which we
manufacture or sell, including component failures, manufacturing flaws, design
defects or inadequate disclosure of product-related risks or product-related
information. Product liability claims may be brought by individuals or by groups
seeking to represent a class. The outcome of litigation, particularly class action
lawsuits, is difficult to assess or quantify. Plaintiffs in these types of lawsuits often
seek recovery of very large or indeterminate amounts, and the magnitude of the
potential loss relating to such lawsuits may remain unknown for substantial periods of
time. Any costs (the material components of which are settlements, judgments, legal
fees and other related defense costs) not covered under our previously issued product
liability insurance policies and existing reserves could have a material adverse effect
on our revenues, financial position and cash flows. Additionally, product liability
claims could negatively affect our reputation, continued product sales, and our ability
to obtain and maintain regulatory approval for our products.

We depend on fewer suppliers for our products and therefore we may be less able to
negotiate price terms with suppliers.

In recent years, pharmaceutical suppliers have been subject to increasing
consolidation. As a result, a small number of very large companies control a
significant share of the market. Many healthcare organizations also have consolidated
to create larger healthcare enterprises with greater market power. If this consolidation
trend continues, it could reduce the size of our target market and give the resulting
enterprises greater bargaining power, which may lead to a decrease in the prices for
our products and services.

If third-party payors do not provide adeguate coverage and reimbursement for the use
of our products, our revenues will be negatively impacted.

Our success in marketing our products depends in large part on whether U.S. and
international government health administrative authorities, private health insurers
and other organizations will adequately cover and reimburse customers for the cost of
our products. In the United States, a third-party payor’s decision to provide coverage
for our products does not imply that an adequate reimbursement rate will be obtained.
Further, one third-party payor’s decision to cover our products does not assure that
other payors will also provide coverage for the products or provide coverage at an
adequate reimbursement rate. Reimbursement systems in international markets vary
significantly by country and by region within some countries, and reimbursement
approvals must be obtained on a country-by-country basis. In many international
markets, a product must be approved for reimbursement before it can be approved for
sale in that country. Further, many international markets have government-managed



healthcare systems that control reimbursement for new devices and procedures. In
most markets there are private insurance systems as well as government-managed
systems. If sufficient coverage and reimbursement is not available for our current or
future products, in either the United States or internationally, the demand for our
products and our revenues will be adversely affected.

The Company could be negatively impacted if found to have infringed on intellectual
property rights.

Technology companies, including many of the Company’s competitors, frequently
enter into litigation based on allegations of patent infringement or other violations of
intellectual property rights. In addition, patent holding companies seek to monetize
patents they have purchased or otherwise obtained. As the Company grows, the
intellectual property rights claims against it will likely increase. The Company intends
to vigorously defend infringement actions in court and before the U.S. International
Trade Commission. The plaintiffs in these actions frequently seek injunctions and
substantial damages. Regardless of the scope or validity of such patents or other
intellectual property rights, or the merits of any claims by potential or actual litigants,
the Company may have to engage in protracted litigation. If the Company is found to
infringe one or more patents or other intellectual property rights, regardless of
whether it can develop non-infringing technology, it may be required to pay
substantial damages or royalties to a third-party, or it may be subject to a temporary
or permanent injunction prohibiting the Company from marketing or selling certain
products. In certain cases, the Company may consider the desirability of entering into
licensing agreements, although no assurance can be given that such licenses can be
obtained on acceptable terms or that litigation will not occur. These licenses may also
significantly increase the Company’s operating expenses. Regardless of the merit of
particular claims, litigation may be expensive, time-consuming, disruptive to the
Company’s operations and distracting to management. In recognition of these
considerations, the Company may enter into arrangements to settle litigation. If one
or more legal matters were resolved against the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for that reporting period could be materially adversely affected. Further,
such an outcome could result in significant compensatory, punitive or trebled
monetary damages, disgorgement of revenue or profits, remedial corporate measures
or injunctive relief against the Company that could adversely affect its financial
condition and results of operations.

Indemnity provisions in various agreements potentially expose us to substantial
liability for intellectual property infringement and other losses.

Our agreements with advertisers, advertising agencies, customers and other third
parties may include indemnification provisions under which we agree to indemnify
them for losses suffered or incurred as a result of claims of intellectual property
infringement, damages caused by us to property or persons, or other liabilities relating
to or arising from our products, services or other contractual obligations. The term of
these indemnity provisions generally survives termination or expiration of the
applicable agreement. Large indemnity payments would harm our business, financial
condition and results of operations. In addition, any type of intellectual property
lawsuit, whether initiated by us or a third party, would likely be time consuming and



expensive to resolve and would divert management’s time and attention.

We rely heavily on our technology and intellectual property, but we may be unable to
adequately or cost-effectively protect or enforce our intellectual property rights,
thereby weakening our competitive position and increasing operating costs.

To protect our rights in our services and technology, we rely on a combination of
copyright and trademark laws, patents, trade secrets, confidentiality agreements with
employees and third parties, and protective contractual provisions. We also rely on
laws pertaining to trademarks and domain names to protect the value of our corporate
brands and reputation. Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary rights,
unauthorized parties may copy aspects of our services or technology, obtain and use
information, marks, or technology that we regard as proprietary, or otherwise violate
or infringe our intellectual property rights. In addition, it is possible that others could
independently develop substantially equivalent intellectual property. If we do not
effectively protect our intellectual property, or if others independently develop
substantially equivalent intellectual property, our competitive position could be
weakened.

We rely on agreements with third parties to provide certain services, goods,
technology, and intellectual property rights necessary to enable us to implement some
of our applications.

Our ability to implement and provide our applications and services to our clients
depends, in part, on services, goods, technology, and intellectual property rights
owned or controlled by third parties. These third parties may become unable to or
refuse to continue to provide these services, goods, technology, or intellectual
property rights on commercially reasonable terms consistent with our business
practices, or otherwise discontinue a service important for us to continue to operate
our applications. If we fail to replace these services, goods, technologies, or
intellectual property rights in a timely manner or on commercially reasonable terms,
our operating results and financial condition could be harmed. In addition, we
exercise limited control over our third-party vendors, which increases our
vulnerability to problems with technology and services those vendors provide. If the
services, technology, or intellectual property of third parties were to fail to perform as
expected, it could subject us to potential liability, adversely affect our renewal rates,
and have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

We may depend on profitable royalty-bearing licenses of our technology, and if we are
unable to maintain and generate such license agreements, then we may not be able to
sustain existing levels of revenue or increase revenue.

We may depend upon the identification, investment in and license of new patents for
our revenues. If we are unable to maintain such license agreements and to continue to
develop new license arrangements, then we may not have the resources to identify
new technology-based opportunities for future patents and inventions in order to
maintain sustainable revenue and growth. Our current or future license agreements
may not provide the volume or quality of royalty revenue to sustain our business. In
some cases, other technology sources may compete against us as they seek to license
and commercialize technologies. These and other strategies may reduce the number of



technology sources and potential clients to whom we can market our services. Our
inability to maintain current relationships and sources of technology or to secure new
licensees, may have a material adverse effect on our business and results of
operations.

If we fail to maintain or expand our relationships with our suppliers, in some cases
single-source suppliers, we may not have adequate access to new or key technology
necessary for our products, which may impair our ability to deliver leading-edge
products.

In addition to the technologies we develop, our suppliers develop product innovations
at our direction that are requested by our customers. Further, we rely heavily on our
component suppliers, to provide us with leading-edge components that conform to
required specifications or contractual arrangements on time and in accordance with a
product roadmap. If we are not able to maintain or expand our relationships with our
suppliers or continue to leverage their research and development capabilities to
develop new technologies desired by our customers, our ability to deliver leading-
edge products in a timely manner may be impaired and we could be required to incur
additional research and development expenses. Also, disruption in our supply chain or
the need to find alternative suppliers could impact the costs and/or timing associated
with procuring necessary products, components and services. Similarly, suppliers have
operating risks that could impact our business. These risks could create product time
delays, inventory and invoicing problems, staging delays, and other operational
difficulties.

We must acquire or develop new products, evolve existing ones, address any defects
or errors, and adapt to technology change.

Technical developments, client requirements, programming languages, and industry
standards change frequently in our markets. As a result, success in current markets
and new markets will depend upon our ability to enhance current products, address
any product defects or errors, acquire or develop and introduce new products that
meet client needs, keep pace with technology changes, respond to competitive
products, and achieve market acceptance. Product development requires substantial
investments for research, refinement, and testing. We may not have sufficient
resources to make necessary product development investments. We may experience
technical or other difficulties that will delay or prevent the successful development,
introduction, or implementation of new or enhanced products. We mav also
experience technical or other difficulties in the integration of acquired technologies
into our existing platform and applications. Inability to introduce or implement new
or enhanced products in a timely manner could result in loss of market share if
competitors are able to provide solutions to meet customer needs before we do, give
rise to unanticipated expenses related to further development or modification of
acquired technologies as a result of integration issues, and adversely affect future
performance.

Our failure to deliver high quality server solutions could damage our reputation and
diminish demand for our products, and subject us to liability.
Our customers require our products to perform at a high level, contain valuable



features and be extremely reliable. The design of our server solutions is sophisticated
and complex, and the process for manufacturing, assembling and testing our server
solutions is challenging. Occasionally, our design or manufacturing processes may fail
to deliver products of the quality that our customers require. For example, a vendor
may provide us with a defective component that failed under certain heavy use
applications. As a result, our product would need to be repaired. The vendor may
agree to pay for the costs of the repairs, but we may incur costs in connection with the
recall and diverted resources from other projects. New flaws or limitations in our
products may be detected in the future. Part of our strategy is to bring new products to
market quickly, and first-generation products may have a higher likelihood of
containing undetected flaws. If our customers discover defects or other performance
problems with our products, our customers’ businesses, and our reputation, may be
damaged. Customers may elect to delay or withhold payment for defective or
underperforming products, request remedial action, terminate contracts for untimely
delivery, or elect not to order additional products. If we do not properly address
customer concerns about our products, our reputation and relationships with our
customers may be harmed. In addition, we may be subject to product liability claims
for a defective product. Any of the foregoing could have an adverse effect on our
business and results of operations.

Cyclical and seasonal fluctuations in the economy, in internet usage and in traditional
retail shopping may have an effect on our business.

Both cyclical and seasonal fluctuations in internet usage and traditional retail
seasonality may affect our business. Internet usage generally slows during the
summer months, and queries typically increase significantly in the fourth quarter of
each vear. These seasonal trends may cause fluctuations in our quarterly results,
including fluctuations in revenues.

The products we sell are advanced, and we need to rapidly and successfully develop
and introduce new products in a competitive, demanding and rapidly changing
environment.

To succeed in our intensely competitive industry, we must continually improve,
refresh and expand our product and service offerings to include newer features,
functionality or solutions, and keep pace with price-to-performance gains in the
industry. Shortened product life cycles due to customer demands and competitive
pressures impact the pace at which we must introduce and implement new
technology. This requires a high level of innovation by both our software developers
and the suppliers of the third-party software components included in our systems. In
addition, bringing new solutions to the market entails a costly and lengthy process,
and requires us to accurately anticipate customer needs and technology trends. We
must continue to respond to market demands, develop leading technologies and
maintain leadership in analytic data solutions performance and scalability, or our
business operations may be adversely affected. We must also anticipate and respond
to customer demands regarding the compatibility of our current and prior offerings.
These demands could hinder the pace of introducing and implementing new
technology. Our future results may be affected if our products cannot effectively
interface and perform well with software products of other companies and with our



customers’ existing IT infrastructures, or if we are unsuccessful in our efforts to enter
into agreements allowing integration of third-party technology with our database and
software platforms. Our efforts to develop the interoperability of our products may
require significant investments of capital and employee resources. In addition, many
of our principal products are used with products offered by third parties and, in the
future, some vendors of non-Company products may become less willing to provide us
with access to their products, technical information and marketing and sales support.
As a result of these and other factors, our ability to introduce new or improved
solutions could be adversely impacted and our business would be negatively affected.

Industry consolidation may result in increased competition, which could result in a
loss of customers or a reduction in revenue.

Some of our competitors have made or may make acquisitions or may enter into
partnerships or other strategic relationships to offer more comprehensive services
than they individually had offered or achieve greater economies of scale. In addition,
new entrants not currently considered to be competitors may enter our market
through acquisitions, partnerships or strategic relationships. We expect these trends
to continue as companies attempt to strengthen or maintain their market positions.
The potential entrants may have competitive advantages over us, such as greater
name recognition, longer operating histories, more varied services and larger
marketing budgets, as well as greater financial, technical and other resources. The
companies resulting from combinations or that expand or vertically integrate their
business to include the market that we address may create more compelling service
offerings and may offer greater pricing flexibility than we can or may engage in
business practices that make it more difficult for us to compete effectively, including
on the basis of price, sales and marketing programs, technology or service
functionality. These pressures could result in a substantial loss of our customers or a
reduction in our revenue.

Our business could be negatively impacted by cyber security threats, attacks and other
disruptions.

Like others in our industry, we continue to face advanced and persistent attacks on
our information infrastructure where we manage and store various proprietary
information and sensitive/confidential data relating to our operations. These attacks
may include sophisticated malware (viruses, worms, and other malicious software
programs) and phishing emails that attack our products or otherwise exploit any
security vulnerabilities. These intrusions sometimes may be zero-day malware that
are difficult to identify because they are not included in the signature set of
commercially available antivirus scanning programs. Experienced computer
programmers and hackers may be able to penetrate our network security and
misappropriate or compromise our confidential information or that of our customers
or other third-parties, create system disruptions, or cause shutdowns. Additionally,
sophisticated software and applications that we produce or procure from third-parties
may contain defects in design or manufacture, including "bugs” and other problems
that could unexpectedly interfere with the operation of the information infrastructure.
A disruption, infiltration or failure of our information infrastructure systems or any of
our data centers as a result of software or hardware malfunctions, computer viruses,



cyber attacks, employee theft or misuse, power disruptions, natural disasters or
accidents could cause breaches of data security, loss of critical data and performance
delays, which in turn could adversely affect our business.

If we do not respond to technological changes or upgrade our websites and technology
systems, our growth prospects and results of operations could be adversely affected.
To remain competitive, we must continue to enhance and improve the functionality
and features of our websites and technology infrastructure. As a result, we will need to
continue to improve and expand our hosting and network infrastructure and related
software capabilities. These improvements may require greater levels of spending
than we have experienced in the past. Without such improvements, our operations
might suffer from unanticipated system disruptions, slow application performance or
unreliable service levels, any of which could negatively affect our reputation and
ability to attract and retain customers and contributors. Furthermore, in order to
continue to attract and retain new customers, we are likely to incur expenses in
connection with continuously updating and improving our user interface and
experience. We may face significant delays in introducing new services, products and
enhancements. If competitors introduce new products and services using new
technologies or if new industry standards and practices emerge, our existing websites
and our proprietary technology and systems may become obsolete or less competitive,
and our business may be harmed. In addition, the expansion and improvement of our
systems and infrastructure may require us to commit substantial financial,
operational and technical resources, with no assurance that our business will improve.

We currently obtain components from single or limited sources, and are subject to
significant supply and pricing risks.

Many components, including those that are available from multiple sources, are at
times subject to industry-wide shortages and significant commodity pricing
fluctuations. While the Company has entered into agreements for the supply of many
components, there can be no assurance that we will be able to extend or renew these
agreements on similar terms, or at all. A number of suppliers of components may
suffer from poor financial conditions, which can lead to business failure for the
supplier or consolidation within a particular industry, further limiting our ability to
obtain sufficient quantities of components. The follow-on effects from global
economic conditions on our suppliers, also could affect our ability to obtain
components. Therefore, we remain subject to significant risks of supply shortages and
price increases. Our products often utilize custom components available from only
one source. Continued availability of these components at acceptable prices, or at all,
may be affected for any number of reasons, including if those suppliers decide to
concentrate on the production of common components instead of components
customized to meet our requirements. The supply of components for a new or existing
product could be delayed or constrained, or a key manufacturing vendor could delay
shipments of completed products to us adversely affecting our business and results of
operations.

The Company depends on the performance of distributors, carriers and other resellers.
The Company distributes its products through healthcare facilities, national and



regional retailers, and value-added resellers, many of whom distribute products from
competing manufacturers. The Company also sells its products and third-party
products in most of its major markets directly to education, enterprise and
government customers, and consumers and small and mid-sized businesses through
its online and retail stores. Some resellers have perceived the expansion of the
Company’s direct sales as conflicting with their business interests as distributors and
resellers of the Company’s products or similar. Such a perception could discourage
resellers from investing resources in the distribution and sale of the Company’s
products or lead them to limit or cease distribution of those products. The Company
has invested and will continue to invest in programs to enhance reseller sales,
including educational courses and product branding. These programs could require a
substantial investment while providing no assurance of return or incremental revenue.
The financial condition of these resellers could weaken, these resellers could stop
distributing the Company’s products, or uncertainty regarding demand for the
Company’s products could cause resellers to reduce their ordering and marketing of
the Company’s products.

The Shares of Common Stock will not be freely tradable until one year from the initial
purchase date. Although the Shares of Common Stock may be tradable under federal
securities law, state securities regulations may apply and each Purchaser should
consult with his or her attorney.

You should be aware of the long-term nature of this investment. There is not now and
likely will not be a public market for the Shares of Common Stock. Because the Shares
of Common Stock have not been registered under the Securities Act or under the
securities laws of any state or non-United States jurisdiction, the Shares of Common
Stock have transfer restrictions and cannot be resold in the United States except
pursuant to Rule 501 of Regulation CF. It is not currently contemplated that
registration under the Securities Act or other securities laws will be effected.
Limitations on the transfer of the Shares of Common Stock may also adversely affect
the price that vou might be able to obtain for the Shares of Common Stock in a private
sale. Purchasers should be aware of the long-term nature of their investment in the
Company. Each Purchaser in this Offering will be required to represent that it is
purchasing the Securities for its own account, for investment purposes and not with a
view to resale or distribution thereof,

Neither the Offering nor the Securities have been registered under federal or state
securities laws, leading to an absence of certain regulation applicable to the Company.
No governmental agency has reviewed or passed upon this Offering, the Company or
any Securities of the Company. The Company also has relied on exemptions from
securities registration requirements under applicable state securities laws. Investors
in the Company, therefore, will not receive any of the benefits that such registration
would otherwise provide. Prospective investors must therefore assess the adequacy of
disclosure and the fairness of the terms of this Offering on their own or in conjunction
with their personal advisors.

No Guarantee of Return on Investment
There is no assurance that a Purchaser will realize a return on its investment or that it



will not lose its entire investment. For this reason, each Purchaser should read the
Form C and all Exhibits carefully and should consult with its own attorney and
business advisor prior to making any investment decision.

A majority of the Company is owned by a small number of owners.

Prior to the Offering the Company’s current owners of 20% or more beneficially own
up to 90.0% of the Company's voting stock (Charles Sutera owns 90% of the
Company's Common Stock and 100% of the Company's Series P Preferred Stock).
Subject to any fiduciary duties owed to our other owners or investors under Delaware
law, these owners may be able to exercise significant influence over matters requiring
owner approval, including the election of directors or managers and approval of
significant Company transactions, and will have significant control over the
Company’s management and policies. Some of these persons may have interests that
are different from yours. For example, these owners may support proposals and
actions with which you may disagree. The concentration of ownership could delay or
prevent a change in control of the Company or otherwise discourage a potential
acquirer from attempting to obtain control of the Company, which in turn could
reduce the price potential investors are willing to pay for the Company. In addition,
these owners could use their voting influence to maintain the Company’s existing
management, delay or prevent changes in control of the Company, or support or reject
other management and board proposals that are subject to owner approval.

The Company has the right to extend the Offering deadline.

The Company may extend the Offering deadline beyond what is currently stated
herein. This means that your investment may continue to be held in escrow while the
Company attempts to raise the Minimum Amount even after the Offering deadline
stated herein is reached. Your investment will not be accruing interest during this
time and will simply be held until such time as the new Offering deadline is reached
without the Company receiving the Minimum Amount, at which time it will be
returned to you without interest or deduction, or the Company receives the Minimum
Amount, at which time it will be released to the Company to be used as set forth
herein. Upon or shortly after release of such funds to the Company, the Securities will
be issued and distributed to yvou.

Your ownership of the shares of stock will be subject to dilution.

Owners of do not have preemptive rights. If the Company conducts subsequent
Offerings of or Securities convertible into , issues shares pursuant to a compensation
or distribution reinvestment plan or otherwise issues additional shares, investors who
purchase shares in this Offering who do not participate in those other stock issuances
will experience dilution in their percentage ownership of the Company’s outstanding
shares. Furthermore, shareholders may experience a dilution in the value of their
shares depending on the terms and pricing of any future share issuances (including
the shares being sold in this Offering) and the value of the Company’s assets at the
time of issuance.

The Securities will be equity interests in the Company and will not constitute

indebtedness.



The Securities will rank junior to all existing and future indebtedness and other non-
equity claims on the Company with respect to assets available to satisfy claims on the
Company, including in a liquidation of the Company. Additionally, unlike
indebtedness, for which principal and interest would customarily be payable on
specified due dates, there will be no specified payments of dividends with respect to
the Securities and dividends are payable only if, when and as authorized and declared
by the Company and depend on, among other matters, the Company’s historical and
projected results of operations, liquidity, cash flows, capital levels, financial
condition, debt service requirements and other cash needs, financing covenants,
applicable state law, federal and state regulatory prohibitions and other restrictions
and any other factors the Company’s board of directors deems relevant at the time. In
addition, the terms of the Securities will not limit the amount of debt or other
obligations the Company may incur in the future. Accordingly, the Company may
incur substantial amounts of additional debt and other obligations that will rank
senior to the Securities.

There can be no assurance that we will ever provide liquidity to Purchasers through
either a sale of the Company or a registration of the Securities.

There can be no assurance that any form of merger, combination, or sale of the
Company will take place, or that any merger, combination, or sale would provide
liquidity for Purchasers. Furthermore, we may be unable to register the Securities for
resale by Purchasers for legal, commercial, regulatory, market-related or other
reasons. In the event that we are unable to effect a registration, Purchasers could be
unable to sell their Securities unless an exemption from registration is available. In
addition to the risks listed above, businesses are often subject to risks not foreseen or
fully appreciated by the management. It is not possible to foresee all risks that may
affect us. Moreover, the Company cannot predict whether the Company will
successfully effectuate the Company’s current business plan. Each prospective
Purchaser is encouraged to carefully analyze the risks and merits of an investment in
the Securities and should take into consideration when making such analysis, among
other, the Risk Factors discussed above. THE SECURITIES OFFERED INVOLVE A HIGH
DEGREE OF RISK AND MAY RESULT IN THE LOSS OF YOUR ENTIRE INVESTMENT.
ANY PERSON CONSIDERING THE PURCHASE OF THESE SECURITIES SHOULD BE
AWARE OF THESE AND OTHER FACTORS SET FORTH IN THIS FORM C AND
SHOULD CONSULT WITH HIS OR HER LEGAL, TAX AND FINANCIAL ADVISORS
PRIOR TO MAKING AN INVESTMENT IN THE SECURITIES. THE SECURITIES
SHOULD ONLY BE PURCHASED BY PERSONS WHO CAN AFFORD TO LOSE ALL OF
THEIR INVESTMENT.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or
immediate family members.

Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the
company or their immediate family members may make investments in this offering.
Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on the campaign

page.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the
company’s holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of
this Offering Statement filing.

Stockholder Name |[Number of Securities Owned|Type of Security Owned[Percentage
Charles Sutera 111 |5,400,000 Common Stock 90.0%
Charles Sutera III |1 Series P Preferred Stock
Janna Melzer Sutera|600,000 Common Stock 10.0%

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Common Stock, Preferred Stock, Series P Preferred
Stock, and SAFE. As part of the Regulation Crowdfunding raise, the Company will be
offering up to 732,876 of Common Stock.

Common Stock
The amount of security authorized is 20,000,000 with a total of 6,450,000 outstanding.
Voting Rights

Holders of basic common stock have one vote per share and may vote to elect the
board of directors and on matters of corporate policy. Please see Voting Rights of
Securities Sold in this Offering below for additional information.

Material Rights

The total amount outstanding includes 450,000 shares to be issued pursant to stock
options, reserved but unissued.

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (the “CEO™), or his or her successor, as the Subscriber’s true and lawful
proxy and attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to,
consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities,
(ii) give and receive notices and communications, (iii) execute any instrument or
document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the exercise of its
authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in
the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and
power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are coupled with an interest.
Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the
Subscriber is an individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the
Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is an entity, will survive the merger or
reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding the Securities. However,




the Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
1933 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a
registration statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the
Common Stock.

Dividend Rights

Dividends may be declared and paid on the Common Stock from funds lawfully
available therefore if, as and when determined by the Board of Directors in their sold
discretion, subject to provisions of law, any provision of this Certificate of
Incorporation, as amended from time to time, and subject to the relatively rights and
preferences of any shares of the Preferred Stock authorized, issued and outstanding
hereunder.

Liquidation Rigl

Upon the dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the Corporation, whether voluntary
or involuntary, holders of record of the Common Stock will be entitled to receive pro
rata all assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its stockholders, subject,
however, to the liquidation rights of the holders of the Preferred Stock authorized,
issued and outstanding hereunder.

Other Rights
Other than as set forth in any shareholder’s agreements and as described elsewhere

herein, the Company’s shareholders have no preemptive or other rights to subscribe
for additional shares.

\nti-Dilution Rig]
The Securities do not have anti-dilution rights.
R . s T ;

Any Securities sold pursuant to Regulation CF being offered may not be transferred by
any Investor of such Securities during the one-year holding period beginning when
the Securities were issued, unless such Securities were transferred: 1) to the Company,
2) to an accredited investor, as defined by Rule 501(d) of Regulation D of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, 3) as part of an Offering registered with the SEC or
4) to a member of the family of the Investor or the equivalent, to a trust controlled by
the Investor, to a trust created for the benefit of a family member of the Investor or
the equivalent, or in connection with the death or divorce of the Investor or other
similar circumstances. "Member of the family” as used herein means a child, stepchild,
grandchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse or spousal equivalent, sibling,
mother/father/daughter/son/sister/brother-in-law, and includes adoptive
relationships. Remember that although you may legally be able to transfer the
Securities, you may not be able to find another party willing to purchase them.



Other Material Terms

The Company does not have the right to repurchase the Units of Common Stock.
Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 999,999 with a total of 0 outstanding.
Voting Rights

Preferred shares have voting rights equal to the # of shares of common stock issued
and outstanding plus # of other votes held by any other preferred shares.

Material Rights

The Preferred Stock may be issued from time to time in one or more series. The Board
of Directors is authorized, subject to any limitations prescribed by law, to provide for
the issuance of shares of Preferred Stock in series, and by filing a certificate pursuant
to the applicable law of the State of Delaware (such certificate being hereafter referred
to as a "Preferred Stock Designation”), to establish from time to time the number of
shares to be included in each such series, and to fix the designation, powers,
preferences and rights of the shares of each such series and any qualifications,
limitations or restrictions thereof In the event that at any time the Board of Directors
shall have established and designated one or more series of Preferred Stock consisting
of a number of shares less than all of the authorized number of shares of Preferred
Stock, the remaining authorized shares of Preferred Stock shall be deemed to be
shares of an undesignated series of Preferred Stock unless and until designated by the
Board of Directors as being part of a series previously established or a new series then
being established by the Board of Directors. Notwithstanding the fixing of the number
of shares constituting a particular series, the Board of Directors may at any time
thereafter authorize an increase or decrease in the number of shares of any such series
except as set forth in the Preferred Stock Designation for such series. hi case the
number of shares of any series shall be so decreased, the shares constituting such
decrease shall resume the status of authorized undesignated Preferred Stock unless
and until designated by the Board of Directors as being a part of a series previously
established or a new series then being established by the Board of Directors. The
number of authorized shares of Preferred Stock may be increased or decreased (but not
below the number of shares thereof then outstanding) by the affirmative vote of the
holders of the capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote thereon, without a vote
of the holders of the Preferred Stock or of any series thereof, voting as a separate class,
unless a vote of any such holders is required pursuant to the terms of any Preferred
Stock Designation.

Series P Preferred Stock
The amount of security authorized is 1 with a total of 1 outstanding.

Voting Rights



Except as otherwise required by law or expressly provided herein, each share of Series
P Preferred Stock shall be entitled to vote in conjunction with the Common Stock on
all matters submitted or required to be submitted to a vote of the stockholders of the
Corporation (the “Voting Event™). Each share of Series P Preferred Stock shall be
entitled to such number of votes that equal the total number of Common Stock
outstanding and entitled to vote on such Voting Event (including, without limitation,
all shares of Common Stock and any other votes underlying any convertible
instruments of the Corporation that are entitled to vote on such Voting Event) as of
the record date for the determination of stockholders entitled to vote on such matters
or, if no such record date is established, at the date such vote is taken or any written
consent of stockholders is solicited. In each such case, except as otherwise required by
law or expressly provided herein, the holder of shares of Series P Preferred Stock and
Common Stock shall vote together and not as separate classes.

Material Rights

The holder of Series P Preferred stock is entitled to certain protective provisions.
Please see exhibit F for additional detail.

SAFE

The security will convert into Common stock and the terms of the SAFE are outlined
below:

Amount outstanding: $200,000.00

Interest Rate: %

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: If there is an Equity Financing before the termination of this Safe,
on the initial closing of such Equity Financing, this Safe will automatically convert
into the number of shares of Safe Preferred or Common Stock equal to the Purchase
Amount divided by the Discount Price.

Material Rights

1. Events

(a) Equity Financing. If there is an Equity Financing before the termination of this
Safe, on the initial closing of such Equity Financing, this Safe will automatically
convert into the number of shares of Safe Preferred or Common Stock equal to the
Purchase Amount divided by the Discount Price.

In connection with the automatic conversion of this Safe into shares of Safe Preferred
or Common Stock, the Investor will execute and deliver to the Company all of the
transaction documents related to the Equity Financing; provided, that such
documents (i) are the same documents to be entered into with the purchasers of
Standard Preferred Stock, with appropriate variations for the Safe Preferred or
Common Stock if applicable, and (ii) have customary exceptions to any drag-along



applicable to the Investor, including (without limitation) limited representations,
warranties, liability and indemnification obligations for the Investor.

(b) Liguidity Event. If there is a Liquidity Event before the termination of this Safe,
this Safe will automatically be entitled (subject to the liquidation priority set forth in
Section 1(d) below) to receive a portion of Proceeds, due and payable to the Investor
immediately prior to, or concurrent with, the consummation of such Liquidity Event,
equal to the greater of (i) the Purchase Amount (the “Cash-Out Amount™) or (ii) the
amount payable on the number of shares of Common Stock equal to the Purchase
Amount divided by the Liquidity Price (the “Conversion Amount”). If any of the
Company’s securityholders are given a choice as to the form and amount of Proceeds
to be received in a Liquidity Event, the Investor will be given the same choice,
provided that the Investor may not choose to receive a form of consideration that the
Investor would be ineligible to receive as a result of the Investor’s failure to satisfy
any requirement or limitation generally applicable to the Company’s securityholders,
or under any applicable laws.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in connection with a Change of Control intended to
qualify as a tax-free reorganization, the Company may reduce the cash portion of
Proceeds pavyable to the Investor by the amount determined by its board of directors
in good faith for such Change of Control to qualify as a tax-free reorganization for U.S.
federal income tax purposes, provided that such reduction (A) does not reduce the
total Proceeds pavable to such Investor and (B) is applied in the same manner and on
a pro rata basis to all securityholders who have equal priority to the Investor under
Section 1(d).

(c) Dissolution Event. If there is a Dissolution Event before the termination of this
Safe, the Investor will automatically be entitled (subject to the liquidation priority set
forth in Section 1(d) below) to receive a portion of Proceeds equal to the Cash-Out
Amount, due and payable to the Investor immediately prior to the consummation of
the Dissolution Event.

(d) Liguidation Priority. In a Ligquidity Event or Dissolution Event, this Safe is intended
to operate like standard non-participating Preferred Stock. The Investor’s right to
receive its Cash-Out Amount is:

(i) Junior to payment of outstanding indebtedness and creditor claims, including
contractual claims for payment and convertible promissory notes (to the extent such
convertible promissory notes are not actually or notionally converted into Capital
Stock);

(ii) On par with payments for other Safes and/or Preferred Stock, and if the applicable
Proceeds are insufficient to permit full payments to the Investor and such other Safes
and/or Preferred Stock, the applicable Proceeds will be distributed pro rata to the
Investor and such other Safes and/or Preferred Stock or Common Stock in proportion
to the full payments that would otherwise be due; and

(i11) Senior to payments for Common Stock.



The Investor’s right to receive its Conversion Amount is (A) on par with payments for
Common Stock and other Safes and/or Preferred Stock or Common Stock who are also
receiving Conversion Amounts or Proceeds on a similar as-converted to Common
Stock basis, and (B) junior to payments described in clauses (i) and (ii) above (in the
latter case, to the extent such payments are Cash-Out Amounts or similar liquidation
preferences).

(e) Termination. This Safe will automatically terminate (without relieving the
Company of any obligations arising from a prior breach of or non-compliance with
this Safe) immediately following the earliest to occur of: (i) the issuance of Capital
Stock to the Investor pursuant to the automatic conversion of this Safe under Section
1(a); or (ii) the payment, or setting aside for payment, of amounts due the Investor
pursuant to Section 1(b) or Section 1(c).

2. Definitions

“Capital Stock” means the capital stock of the Company, including, without
limitation, the “Common Stock” and the “Preferred Stock.”

“Change of Control” means (i) a transaction or series of related transactions in which
any “person” or “group” (within the meaning of Section 13(d) and 14(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), becomes the “beneficial owner” (as
defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended),
directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the outstanding voting securities of the
Company having the right to vote for the election of members of the Company’s board
of directors, (ii) any reorganization, merger or consolidation of the Company, other
than a transaction or series of related transactions in which the holders of the voting
securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior to such transaction or series
of related transactions retain, immediately after such transaction or series of related
transactions, at least a majority of the total voting power represented by the
outstanding voting securities of the Company or such other surviving or resulting
entity or (iii) a sale, lease or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Company.

“Direct Listing” means the Company’s initial listing of its Common Stock (other than
shares of Common Stock not eligible for resale under Rule 144 under the Securities
Act) on a national securities exchange by means of an effective registration statement
on Form S-1 filed by the Company with the SEC that registers shares of existing
capital stock of the Company for resale, as approved by the Company’s board of
directors. For the avoidance of doubt, a Direct Listing shall not be deemed to be an
underwritten offering and shall not involve any underwriting services.

“Discount Price” means the lowest price per share of the Standard Preferred Stock or
Common Stock in the Equity Financing multiplied by the amount equal to (i) 100%
minus (ii) the Discount Rate.

“Dissolution Event” means (i) a voluntary termination of operations, (ii) a general
assignment for the benefit of the Company’s creditors or (iii) any other liquidation,



dissolution or winding up of the Company (excluding a Liquidity Event), whether
voluntary or involuntary.

“Dividend Amount” means, with respect to any date on which the Company pays a
dividend on its outstanding Common Stock, the amount of such dividend that is paid
per share of Common Stock multiplied by (x) the Purchase Amount divided by (vy) the
Liquidity Price (treating the dividend date as a Liquidity Event solely for purposes of
calculating such Liquidity Price).

“Equity Financing” means a bona fide transaction or series of transactions with the
principal purpose of raising capital, pursuant to which the Company issues and sells
Common Stock or Preferred Stock at a fixed valuation in an amount not less than
$250,000, including but not limited to, a pre-money or post-money valuation.

“Initial Public Offering” means the closing of the Company’s first firm commitment
underwritten initial public offering of Common Stock pursuant to a registration
statement filed under the Securities Act.

“Liquidity Event” means a Change of Control, a Direct Listing or an Initial Public
Offering.

“Liquidity Price” means the price per share equal to the fair market value of the
Common Stock at the time of the Liquidity Event, as determined by reference to the
purchase price payable in connection with such Liquidity Event, multiplied by the
Discount Rate.

“Proceeds” means cash and other assets (including without limitation stock
consideration) that are proceeds from the Liquidity Event or the Dissolution Event, as
applicable, and legally available for distribution.

“Safe” means an instrument containing a future right to shares of Capital Stock,
similar in form and content to this instrument, purchased by investors for the purpose
of funding the Company’s business operations. References to “this Safe” mean this
specific instrument.

“Safe Preferred or Common Stock” means the shares of the series of Preferred or
Common Stock issued to the Investor in an Equity Financing, having the identical
rights, privileges, preferences and restrictions as the shares of Standard Preferred
Stock, other than with respect to: (i) the per share liquidation preference and the
initial conversion price for purposes of price-based anti-dilution protection, which
will equal the Discount Price; and (ii) the basis for any dividend rights, which will be
based on the Discount Price.

“Standard Preferred Stock or Common Stock” means the shares of a series of Preferred
Stock or Common Stock issued to the investors investing new money in the Company
in connection with the initial closing of the Equity Financing.

What it means to be a minority holder



As a minority holder of Common Stock of this offering, you have granted your votes
by proxy to the CEO of the Company. Even if you were to receive control of your
voting rights, as a minority holder, you will have limited rights in regards to the
corporate actions of the company, including additional issuances of securities,
company repurchases of securities, a sale of the company or its significant assets, or
company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering may
have rights less than those of other investors, and will have limited influence on the
corporate actions of the company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a
company could be diluted due to the company issuing additional shares. In other
words, when the company issues more shares, the percentage of the company that you
own will go down, even though the value of the company may go up. You will own a
smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in number of shares outstanding
could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another
crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees
exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible
bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock. If the company decides to issue more
shares, an investor could experience value dilution, with each share being worth less
than before, and control dilution, with the total percentage an investor owns being
less than before. There may also be earnings dilution, with a reduction in the amount
earned per share (though this typically occurs only if the company offers dividends,
and most early stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest
any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a year, the securities can only be resold:
e [nanIPO;
e Tothe company;
® To an accredited investor; and

e To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the
family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or
divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

e Type of security sold: SAFE
Final amount sold: $100,000.00



Use of proceeds: research and development
Date: July 01, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(c)

e Type of security sold: SAFE
Final amount sold: $100,000.00
Use of proceeds: research and development
Date: July 01, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(c)

¢ Name: Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $0.00
Number of Securities Sold: 5,400,000
Use of proceeds: N/A
Date: March 07, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: Founder's Equity Agreement

o Name: Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $0.00
Number of Securities Sold: 600,000
Use of proceeds: N/A
Date: March 07, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: Founder's Equity Agreement

e Name: Preferred Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $0.00
Number of Securities Sold: 1
Use of proceeds: N/A
Date: March 07, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: Founder's Equity Agreement

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of our operations together with our financial statements and related notes
appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those
contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including
those discussed in the section entitled "Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering



Memorandum.

Results of Operations

How long can the business operate without revenue:

The company currently has the means to operate approximately 9-12 months without
capital injection from outside investors.

Foreseeable major expenses based on projections:

The major expenses for TM] Relax in achieving the defined milestones are payroll,
external marketing, rent, and research and development costs.

Future operational challenges:

Some future operational challenges we foresee are the need to expand the team with
exceptional talent in the areas of sales and operations, securing a larger
manufacturing facility and company headquarters in the Boston metro region,
executing the go to market strategy based on initial assumptions, and pivoting
intelligently as needed based on market feedback.

Future challenges related to capital resources:

The health tech space is highly competitive. Although our product is positioned with a
solid intellectually property strategy, the market landscape or technology available
could evolve at any time which could allow competitors to create competitor products
or could render some of our company’s research and development investments
obsolete. Therefore, gaining market share quickly is important to establish the brand
awareness.

Marketing to gain brand awareness, regulatory strategy development, and clinical
research development in the healthcare space all have historically been costly for

companies. Further rounds of capital will most likely need to be raised to support
growth.

Future milestones and events:

The future milestones that will significantly impact the company financially are
securing external seed capital to be used for growth and development, acquiring early
adopters of healthcare providers that are recommending the product, research and
development of a novel payment pathway, expansion of our regulatory strategy,
development of clinical study to support regulatory strategy and reimbursement
strategy goals as needed, and securing a series A round of capital after achieving said
milestones to continue progress of initial milestones.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand,



existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

As of March 2022, the Company has capital resources available in the form of a
revolving line of credit with Bank of America with a total amount available of $25,000
and currently an outstanding balance of $0. A capital contribution in the amount of

$100,000 is available from the founders. The company currently has $51884 in cash on
hand.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these
funds critical to your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital
resources available?)

We believe the funds of this campaign are critical to our company operations.

These funds are required to support the initial go to market strategy, development of
regulatory strategy, development of reimbursement strategy, and development of
clinical research strategy.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the

total funds that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised
from the crowdfunding campaign?)

We believe the funds from this campaign are necessary to the viability of the
Company. Of the total funds that our Company has, 84% will be made up of funds
raised from the crowdfunding campaign, if it raises its maximum funding goal.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What
expenses is this estimate based on?

If the Company raises the minimum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will
be able to operate for 10 months. This is based on a current monthly burn rate of
$17000 for expenses related to salaries, manufacturing, rent, marketing, and R&D.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding
goal?

If the Company raises the maximum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will
be able to operate for 18 months. This is based on a projected average monthly burn
rate of $66,000 for expenses related to salaries, manufacturing, rent, marketing, and

R&D.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company?
(Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises,
etc...)



Currently, the Company has not contemplated additional future sources of capital.

Indebtedness

e Creditor: Charles Sutera I11
Amount Owed: $30,000.00
Interest Rate: 0.0%

¢ Creditor: Janna Melzer Sutera
Amount Owed: $15,000.00
Interest Rate: 0.0%

e Creditor: Charles Sutera Jr
Amount Owed: $100,000.00
Interest Rate: 0.0%
The debt is a SAFE as described in the terms of the SAFE agreement.

e Creditor: Fiorella Sutera
Amount Owed: $100,000.00
Interest Rate: 0.0%
The debt is a SAFE as described in the terms of the SAFE agreement.

Related Party Transactions

e Name of Entity: Aesthetic Smile Reconstruction PC
Names of 20% owners: Charles Sutera III
Relationship to Company: Entity is owned by CEO of the Company
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Sale of product to the related
party at normal market price.
Material Terms: The Company has sold products to Aesthetic Smile
Reconstruction PC, a dental practice, to be used clinically on patients in the
normal course of business.

¢ Name of Entity: Aesthetic Smile Reconstruction, PC
Names of 20% owners: Charles Sutera III
Relationship to Company: Entity is owned by CEO of the Company
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $3500 in exchange for rental
space at normal market rate.
Material Terms: The Company rents approximately 1000 sq ft of dental
laboratory space from Aesthetic Smile Reconstruction PC

e Name of Entity: Charles Sutera Jr
Relationship to Company: Family member
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $100,000 SAFE purchased in July



of 2020.
Material Terms: $100,000 SAFE purchased in July of 2020.

e Name of Entity: Fiorella Sutera
Relationship to Company: Family member
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $100,000 SAFE purchased in July
of 2020.
Material Terms: $100,000 SAFE purchased in July of 2020.

¢ Name of Entity: Charles Sutera III
Relationship to Company: Director
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $30,000 in salary loaned back to
the company as a shareholder loan
Material Terms: Shareholder loan to be repaid as salary at 0% interest rate.

¢ Name of Entity: Janna Melzer Sutera
Relationship to Company: Director
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $15,000 in salary loaned back to
the company as a shareholder loan
Material Terms: Shareholder loan to be repaid as future salary at 0% interest

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $8,750,000.00

Valuation Details:

TM] Relax has a large total market size and high growth potential. The company sits as
a targeted niche within the orthopedic device industry. The company provides a
solution for a clearly defined problem by helping people seeking relief from
headaches, muscle tension, and other symptoms of temporomandibular joint disorder.
With a total orthopedic medical device market of $53.44 Billion in 2020, the company
is positioned to disrupt a subset of the market through innovation.! The overall
market is of growing concern within the healthcare industry with a CAGR of 6.60%

from 2020 to 2028.1

The team is composed of founders and employees each with a minimum of 10 years
each in their respective fields. Several of the team members are successful serial
entrepreneurs with experience in early stage startups. All team members are
committed and available to fully execute the development of the TM] Relax enterprise.
Founder, Charles Sutera, is a known author and influencer in the healthcare space. He
is the owner of a nationally known dental practice, founder of a large dental blog with

over 100k recurring monthly visitors, and has approximately 100k followers on social
media platforms.

The company has conducted early stage development to support proof of concept. The



company has refined its methods and designs using substantial literature review and
benchtop testing. A working prototype was developed and presented to the FDA for
clearance. In June of 2021, FDA clearance was obtained via the 510k pathway. A small
in-house study was then conducted which further confirmed that the product is
effective and is positioned at a proposed market price that is acceptable to consumers.
The company is currently planning to develop a novel method of reimbursement,
regulatory strategy, and third party clinical trials to further expand its positioning as a
breakthrough, highly-differentiated product from competitors.

The company has developed an intellectual property strategy that creates barriers to
entry for competitors. The company has an omnibus provisional patent which protects
the novel features of the medical device, the manufacturing, and the processes
associated with treatment. The company also has pending design patents and
trademarks of key names of novel methods.

Comparative companies that are of similar stage, similar milestones, and have
similarly skilled teams have pre-money valuations most commonly within the range of
$7M-12M. Some examples of comparative companies that have successfully raised
capital at a similar valuation are as follows:

InnaMed-- Raised $1,070,000 @ $12M valuation -::.511::2
Oracle Health---Raised $3,289,558 @ 20M premoney valuation®

L https://www.globenewswire.com/news-
release/2021/10/22/2518997/0/en/Orthopedic-Devices-Market-Size-is-Projected-to-
Reach-USD-71-67-Billion-by-2026-Exhibiting-a-CAGR-of-4-3.html

2 https://republic.com/innamed

3 https://republic.com/oracle-health

The company has set its valuation internally without the use of any formal third-party
independent evaluation.

The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully diluted basis. In making this
calculation, we note that:

(1) all preferred stock currently outstanding have no conversion rights and therefore
have not been taken into the valuation;

(ii) the company has no outstanding options and warrants.
In making this calculation the company has not assumed that:
(1) any shares reserved for issuance under a stock plan are issued, or

(if) any other securities with a right to acguire shares are exercised.



Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $9,999.54 we plan to use these proceeds as
follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

o Marketing
25.0%
The funds will be used to support advertising and marketing to gain market
share, brand awareness among clinicians, and to support sales of associated
educational courses

e Campaign marketing expenses or related reimbursement
5.0%
The funds will be used to support the marketing of our regulation CF seed round.
The allocation will support the company in securing a satisfactory amount of
funds to achieve company milestones for the next 12-24 months.

e Research & Development
19.5%
The funds will be used to support salaries and associated expenses involved in
development of a reimbursement strategy, regulatory strategy, and clinical trials
strategy, and clinical educational strategy for current or future products. These
processes may be started by funds of this round but some or all may require
further funding to complete or may not be able to be fully executed depending
on the feedback determined from initial research.

o Manufacturing
10.0%
The funds will be allocated to support salaries and expenses associated with
manufacturing of the company products including medical devices and
associated digital products such as courses.

o Fguipment Purchases
5.0%
The funds will be used to purchase equipment needed for the manufacturing of
company products, for daily operational equipment required by our
administration team, and headquarters furnishings.

o [Future Wages
20.0%
The funds will be used to support wages of company employees and officers.

o Working Capital
10.0%
The funds will be used as working capital to support payment of operational



expenses, production expenses, and rental expenses as needed prior to the
company achieving profitability.

If we raise the over allotment amount of $1,069,998.96, we plan to use these proceeds
as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

o Campaign marketing expenses or related reimbursement
5.0%
The funds will be used to support the marketing of our regulation CF seed round.
The allocation will support the company in securing a satisfactory amount of
funds to achieve company milestones for the next 12-24 months.

e Marketing
25.0%
The funds will be used to support advertising and marketing to gain market
share, brand awareness among clinicians, and to support sales of associated
educational courses

e Research & Development
19.5%
The funds will be used to support salaries and associated expenses involved in
development of a reimbursement strategy, regulatory strategy, and clinical trials
strategy, and clinical educational strategy for current or future products. These
processes may be started by funds of this round but some or all may require
further funding to complete or may not be able to be fully executed depending
on the feedback determined from initial research.

e Manufacturing
10.0%
The funds will be allocated to support salaries and expenses associated with
manufacturing of the company products including medical devices and
associated digital products such as courses.

¢ Fguipment Purchases
5.0%
The funds will be used to purchase equipment needed for the manufacturing of
company products, for daily operational equipment required by our
administration team, and headquarters furnishings.

e Future Wages
20.0%
The funds will be used to support wages of company employees and officers.

o Working Capital
10.0%



The funds will be used as working capital to support payment of operational
expenses, production expenses, and rental expenses as needed prior to the
company achieving profitability.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in
the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or
directors.

Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
Crowdfunding.

Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the
report on its website no later than April 30 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once
posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
http://tmjrelax.com (http://tmjrelax.com/annualreport).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements
until:

(1) 1t is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and
has fewer than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) 1t or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: www.startengine.com/tmjrelax



Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a
part.
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
TM] Relax, Inc.
Medford, Massachusetts

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of TM] Relax, Inc. (the "Company,”), which comprise
the balance sheet as of December 31, 2021, and the related statement of operations, statement of shareholders’
equity (deficit), and cash flows for the period from Inception (October 6, 2021) to December 31, 2021, and the
related notes to the financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to
management's financial data and making inquiries of company management. A review is substantially less in
scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as
a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Accountant's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. Those standards require
us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any
material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the results of our
procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Accountant’'s Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying
financial staterments in order for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Going Concern

As discussed in Note 10, certain conditions indicate that the Company may be unable to continue as a going
concern. The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be necessary
should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

S,e,tﬁqaart FS

March 9, 2022
Los Angeles, California




TMJ ReLax INC.
BALAMNCE SHEET

(UNAUDITED)

As of December 31, 2021

(USD S in Dollars)
ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash & cash equivalents 5 81,650

Total current assets 81,650

Property and equipment, net 68,875

Total assets 5 150,525

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Account payables 5 12,234
Shareholder loan 45,000
Total current liabilities 57,234
Total liabilities 57,234

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Owner Equity 145,270
Retained earnings/(Accumulated Deficit) (51,878)
Total stockholders' equity 93,291
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity S 150,525

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



TMJ ReLax INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(UNAUDITED)

Inception {October &, 2021)

31-Dec-21

(USD S in Dollars)
Net revenue 5
Cost of goods sold

43,991
6,087

Gross profit

Operating expenses
General and administrative
Sales and marketing

37,904

71,686
18,196

Total operating expenses

Operating income/(loss)

Interest expense
Other Loss/(Income)

0,882

(51,978)

Income/(Loss) before provision for income taxes
Provision/(Benefit) for income taxes

(51,978)

Net income/{Net Loss) S

(51,978)

See accompanying notes to financial statements,



TMJ RELAX INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS” EQUITY

(UNAUDITED)
Retained earnings/ Total Shareholders’
(in, 5U5) Owner Equity (Accumulated Deficit) Equity
Inception date October 6, 2021
Owner Contribution 5 145,270 S 145,270
Net income/(loss) 5 (51,978) (51,978)
Balance—December 31, 2021 5 145,270 5 (51,978) & 93,291

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



TMJ RELAX INC.
STATEMENTS OF CasH FLows

(UNAUDITED)

As of inception (October 6, 2021) 31-Dec-21

(USD 5 in Dollars)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income/(loss) 5 (51,978)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided/(used) by operating activities:
Depreciation of property 3,625
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Account payables 12,234
Net cash provided/({used) by operating activities (36,120)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of tangible assets (72,500)

Net cash provided/(used) in investing activities (72,500)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Owner Contribution 145,270

Borrowing on shareholder loan 45,000
Net cash provided/{used) by financing activities 190,270
Change in cash 81,650
Cash—beginning of year -
Cash—end of year s 81,650

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for interest
Cash paid during the year for income taxes

L L

OTHER NOMCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES AND SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Purchase of property and equipment not yet paid for 5
Issuance of equity in return for note 5 -
Issuance of equity in return for accrued payroll and other liabilities 5

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



TMJ RELAX INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31, 2021

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

TMJ Relax Inc, was incorporated on October 6, 2021, in the state of Delaware. The financial statements of TMJ Relax
Inc. (which may be referred to as the "Company”, “we”, “us”, or “our”) are prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.5. GAAP”). The Company's headquarters are located
in Medford, Massachusetts,

The Company is a health technology company that produces medical devices related to the health of the jaw, head, and
neck.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America ("US GAAP”). The Company has adopted the calendar year as its basis of reporting.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash in banks. The Company’s cash is deposited in demand accounts at financial
institutions that management believes are creditworthy. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit
accounts, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. As of December 31, 2021, the Company’s cash and cash
equivalents did not exceed FDIC insured limits,

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are recorded at net realizable value or the amount that the Company expects to collect on gross
customer trade receivables. We estimate losses on receivables based on known troubled accounts and historical
experience of losses incurred. Receivables are considered impaired and written-off when it is probable that all
contractual payments due will not be collected in accordance with the terms of the agreement. As of December 31,
2021, the Company determined that no reserve was necessary.

Property and Equipment

Property and eguipment are stated at cost. Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to earnings as incurred
and additions and major improvements are capitalized. The cost of assets retired or otherwise disposed of and the
related depreciation are eliminated from the accounts in the period of disposal and the resulting gain or loss is credited
or charged to earnings.




TMJ RELAX INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31, 2021

Depreciation is computed over the estimated useful lives of the related asset type or term of the operating lease using
the straight-line method for financial statement purposes. The estimated service lives for property and equipment are
as follows:

Category Useful Life
Furniture and Equipment 5 years
Computer Equipment 5 years

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as property and equipment and identifiable intangibles with finite useful lives, are periodically
evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable, We look for indicators of a trigger event for asset impairment and pay special attention to any
adverse change in the extent or manner in which the asset is being used or in its physical condition. Assets are grouped
and evaluated for impairment at the lowest level of which there are identifiable cash flows, which is generally at a
location level. Assets are reviewed using factors including, but not limited to, our future operating plans and projected
cash flows. The determination of whether impairment has occurred is based on an estimate of undiscounted future cash
flows directly related to the assets, compared to the carrying value of the assets. If the sum of the undiscounted future
cash flows of the assets does not exceed the carrying value of the assets, full or partial impairment may exist. If the asset
carrying amount exceeds its fair value, an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which the carrying amount
exceeds the fair value of the asset. Fair value is determined using an income approach, which requires discounting the
estimated future cash flows associated with the asset.

Income Taxes

TMJ Relax Inc. is a € corporation for income tax purposes. The Company accounts for income taxes under the liability
method, and deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying values of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is provided on deferred tax assets if it is determined that
it is more likely than not that the deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company records interest, net of any
applicable related income tax benefit, on potential income tax contingencies as a component of income tax expense,
The Company records tax positions taken, or expected to be taken in a tax return based upon the amount that is more
likely than not to be realized or paid, including in connection with the resolution of any related appeals or other legal
processes. Accordingly, the Company recognizes liabilities for certain unrecognized tax benefits based on the amounts
that are more likely than not to be settled with the relevant taxing authority. The Company recognizes interest and/or
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash with a major financial institution located in the United States of America which it
believes to be creditworthy. Balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At
times, the Company may maintain balances in excess of the federally insured limits.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenues in accordance with FASB ASC 606, revenue from contracts with customers, when
delivery of goods is the sole performance obligation in its contracts with customers. The Company typically collects
payment upon sale and recognizes the revenue when the item has shipped and has fulfilled its sole performance
obligation.

-7 -



TMJ RELAX INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31, 2021

Revenue recognition, according to Topic 606, is determined using the following steps:

1) Identification of the contract, or contracts, with the customer: the Company determines the existence of a
contract with a customer when the contract is mutually approved; the rights of each party in relation to the
services to be transferred can be identified, the payment terms for the services can be identified, the customer
has the capacity and intention to pay and the contract has commercial substance.

2) ldentification of performance obligations in the contract: performance obligations consist of a promised in a
contract (written or oral) with a customer to transfer to the customer either a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same and

that have the same pattern of transfer to the customer.

3) Recognition of revenue when, or how, a performance obligation is met: revenues are recognized when or as
control of the promised goods or services is transferred to customers.

The Company earn revenues from the sale of medical devices related to the health of the jaw, head, and neck to
customers.

Cost of sales
Costs of goods sold include the cost of equipment sold.

Advertising and Promotion

Advertising and promotional costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising and promotional expense for the period from
inception to year ended December 31, 2021, amounted to 518,196, which is included in sales and marketing expenses,

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments included in current assets and current liabilities (such as cash
and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses
approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of such instruments).

The inputs used to measure fair value are based on a hierarchy that prioritizes observable and unobservable inputs used
in valuation technigues. These levels, in order of highest to lowest priority, are described below:

Level 1—CQuoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical assets
or liabilities.

Level 2—0Observable prices that are based on inputs not quoted on active markets but corroborated by market data.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs reflecting the Company’s assumptions, consistent with reasonably available assumptions
made by other market participants. These valuations require significant judgment.

CoVvID-19

In March 2020, the outbreak and spread of the COVID-19 virus was classified as a global pandemic by the World Health
Organization. This widespread disease impacted the Company's business operations, including its employees,
customers, vendors, and communities. The COVID-19 pandemic may continue to impact the Company’s business



TMJ RELAX INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31, 2021

operations and financial operating results, and there is substantial uncertainty in the nature and degree of its continued
effects over time. The extent to which the pandemic impacts the business going forward will depend on numerous
evolving factors management cannot reliably predict, including the duration and scope of the pandemic; governmental,
business, and individuals' actions in response to the pandemic; and the impact on economic activity including the
possibility of recession or financial market instability. These factors may adversely impact consumer and business
spending on products as well as customers' ability to pay for products and services on an ongoing basis. This uncertainty
also affects management’s accounting estimates and assumptions, which could result in greater variability in a variety
of areas that depend on these estimates and assumptions, including investments, receivables, and forward-looking
guidance.

Subseguent Events

The Company considers events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date, but prior to the issuance of the
financial statements to provide additional evidence relative to certain estimates or to identify matters that require
additional disclosure. Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 9, 2022, which is the date the financial
statements were issued.

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2019, FASB issued ASU Mo. 2019-02, leases, that requires organizations that lease assets, referred to as
"lessees", to recognize on the balance sheet the assets and liahilities for the rights and obligations created by those
leases with lease terms of more than twelve months, ASU 2019-02 will also require disclosures to help investors and
other financial statement users better understand the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases
and will include gualitative and guantitative requirements. The new standard for nonpublic entities will be effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2022, and early application is permitted. We are currently evaluating the effect that the updated standard will have on
the financial statements and related disclosures,

The FASB issues ASUs to amend the authoritative literature in ASC. There have been a number of ASUs to date, including
those above, that amend the original text of ASC. Management believes that those issued to date either (i) provide
supplemental guidance, (i} are technical corrections, (iii) are not applicable to us or (iv) are not expected to have a
significant impact on our financial statements.

3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As of December 31, 2021, property and equipment consists of:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021
Furniture and Equipment 5 70,000
Computer Equipment 2,500
Property and Equipment, at Cost 72,500
Accumulated depreciation (3.625)
Property and Equipment, Net 5 68,875

Depreciation expenses for property and equipment for the period from inception to December 31, 2021 and 2019 were
in the amount of $3,625.



TMJ RELAX INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31, 2021

4. CAPITALIZATION AND EQUITY TRANSACTIONS

Commeon Stock

As of December 31, 2021, the Company is authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares of common stock at $0.00001 par value
and none was issued and outstanding.

a. DEBT

Owner Loans

During 2021, the founders have decided to not disburse their salaries and have loaned salary back to the company as
Shareholder Loans. The details of the loans from the owners are as follows:

For the Year Ended December 2021
Principal Interest Current Mon-Curremt Total
Owner Amount Rate Borrowing Period  Maturity Date Portion Portion Iindebtedness
Charles Sutera |l 5 30,000 0.00% Fiscal Year 2021 Mo set maturity | & 30,000 & 30,000
lanna Melzer Sutera 5 15,000 0.00% Fiscal Year 2021 No set maturity | 5 15,000 ] 15,000
Total S 45,000 & 45000 5 - 5 30,000

The imputed interest for 0% interest loans was deemed immaterial and thus not recorded. Since there is no maturity
date set and thus the loan may be called at any time, the loan was classified as current.

6. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2021 consists of the following:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021

Met Operating Loss S (14,184)
Valuation Allowance 14,164
Net Provision for income tax 5 -

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2021 are as follows:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2021

Net Operating Loss 5 (14,164)
Valuation Allowance 14,164
Total Deferred Tax Asset 5 -

Management assesses the available positive and negative evidence to estimate if sufficient future taxable income will
be generated to use the existing deferred tax assets. On the basis of this evaluation, the Company has determined that
it is more likely than not that the Company will not recognize the benefits of the federal and state net deferred tax
assets, and, as a result, full valuation allowance has been set against its net deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2021

- 10 -



TMJ RELAX INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORrR YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31I 2021

and December 31, 2019, The amount of the deferred tax asset to be realized could be adjusted if estimates of future
taxable income during the carryforward period are reduced or increased.

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021, the Company had federal cumulative net operating loss ("NOL")
carryforwards of 551,978, and the Company had state net operating loss (“NOL") carryforwards of approximately
551,978, Utilization of some of the federal and state NOL carryforwards to reduce future income taxes will depend on
the Company's ability to generate sufficient taxable income prior to the expiration of the carryforwards. The federal net
operating loss carryforward is subject to an 80% limitation on taxable income, does not expire, and will carry on
indefinitely.

The Company recognizes the impact of a tax position in the financial statements if that position is more likely than not
to be sustained on a tax return upon examination by the relevant taxing authority, based on the technical merits of the
position, As of December 31, 2021, the Company had no unrecognized tax benefits.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. As of
December 31, 2021, the Company had no accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions.

7. RELATED PARTY

During 2021, the founders, Charles Sutera Il and Janna Melzer Sutera, have decided to not disburse their salaries and
have loaned salary back to the company as Shareholder Loans. The loans bear no interest rate and there is no defined
maturity date. As of December 31, 2021, the outstanding balance of the loan to Charles Sutera Il was $30,000, and the
balance of the loan to Janna Melzer Sutera was 515,000, and it has been classified as current liability.

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases

On October &, 2021, the company entered into a commercial month-to-month lease agreement with Aesthetic Smile
Reconstruction PC. The base rent is $3,500. Rent expenses were in the amount of 510,500 for the period from inception
to December 31, 2021,

Contingencies

The Company’'s operations are subject to a variety of local and state regulation. Failure to comply with one or more of
those regulations could result in fines, restrictions on its operations, or losses of permits that could result in the
Company ceasing operations.

Litigation and Claims

From time to time, the Company may be involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of operations in the normal
course of business, As of December 31, 2021, there were no pending or threatened lawsuits that could reasonably be
expected to have a material effect on the results of the Company’s operations.

-11 -



TMJ RELAX INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORrR YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31I 2021

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events for the period from December 31, 2021 through March 4, 2022, which
is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

On January 18, 2022, the company amended its articles of incorporation to authorize the issuance of 20,000,000 shares
of common stock at 50.0001 par value and 1,000,000 shares of preferred stocks at $0.0001 par value. On March 7, 2022,
6,000,000 shares of common